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1 Introduction 
 
 
During 2012/13 NHS Derby City and NHS Derbyshire County were the local Primary Care 
Trusts (PCTs) for Derby and Derbyshire, with responsibility for health care across the whole 
area. Since 2011 the PCTs worked together as a Cluster with a single Chief Executive and 
senior team. As part of this ongoing reform of the NHS, PCTs were abolished on 31 March 
2013, with many of their responsibilities being taken on by Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs). The past year has therefore been a time of transition from the PCT cluster to CCGs 
and other new organisations within and outside the NHS. 
 
 
Development of Clinical Commissioning Groups 
 
Clinical Commissioning Groups are taking on many of the functions of the PCTs, ensuring 
strong clinical input to the commissioning and development of services. CCGs are made up 
of groups of GP practices, and are chaired by a local GP. They have all been through a 
stringent authorisation process, and all four Derbyshire CCGs were authorised without 
conditions – unique within the Midlands and East area. 
 
The configuration of the CCGs is as follows:  
 

CCG Population coverage Number of practices 
NHS Southern Derbyshire 524,747 57 
NHS North Derbyshire 287,627 38 
NHS Hardwick  102,160 16 
NHS Erewash 96,985 13 

 
The CCGs serve the population of Derbyshire County and Derby City (excluding Glossop), 
with Derby City being part of the Southern Derbyshire CCG. NHS Hardwick CCG serves 
Clay Cross, Bolsover and surrounding areas, while NHS North Derbyshire CCG covers the 
rest of north Derbyshire including the High Peak and North Dales. NHS Erewash CCG 
serves the population covered by Erewash Borough Council, its main town being Ilkeston. 
 
 
Commissioning Support Services 
 
In parallel to the development of the CCGs, work has been underway to establish a 
Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) to support CCGs in undertaking their commissioning 
responsibilities and delivering the best possible outcomes for patients. 
 
The CSU supports a number of CCGs, benefiting from economies of scale and the sharing 
of expertise across a wide area. The local CSU, known as GEM (Greater East Midlands) will 
incorporate both nationally organised services such as business intelligence, major clinical 
procurements, communications and engagement, finance and HR, and local support for 
areas including Continuing Care, quality assurance and patient safety. As with CCGs, CSUs 
have also had to complete a national authorisation process before they are able to operate 
fully. 
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Public Health Transition 
 
A key element of the Government’s reform of the NHS is the integration of Public Health with 
local authorities and the establishment of Health and Wellbeing Boards.  
 
The transition of public health responsibilities and budgets to local authorities and other 
successor organisations has been a major focus of work for the whole of this year. Both 
Derbyshire County and Derby City Councils have worked actively with the PCT Cluster to lay 
the foundations of a smooth transition to local authorities in April 2013. This has involved a 
lot of complex planning as something like 100 staff will need to migrate across to new 
organisations, as well as around £80,000,000 worth of contracts. 
 
Local authorities have also established Health and Wellbeing Boards to oversee everything 
that relates to health and wellbeing in its patch. The two Boards have developed high level 
strategies based on a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) which identifies the needs 
of the local population.   
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2 Commissioning Healthcare 
 
 
As explained in section one, the responsibility for commissioning services, and the 
associated staff and resources, were devolved to the Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) in July 2011 to enable them to build their organisations ahead of April 2013. So, for 
example, NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG now takes a lead role in the contract with Royal 
Derby Hospitals, while NHS North Derbyshire CCG leads on the contract with Chesterfield 
Royal Hospital.  
 
 
Acute Hospital Care 
 
The CCGs have contracts with a number of major hospitals both within Derbyshire and on its 
borders – for example Nottingham University Hospitals and the Sheffield Teaching Hospital. 
The two main contracts within Derbyshire, however, are with Royal Derby Hospitals (with a 
contract value of over £300million) and Chesterfield Royal Hospital (over £160million). 
 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital 
 
The Hospital has seen a number of positive developments over the past year. Lifeblood, the 
thrombosis charity has awarded a special commendation certificate for the innovative way 
that the Hospital is preventing venous thromboembolism. 
 
Quality Health undertook a patient experience survey for those with cancer on behalf of the 
Department of Health and Chesterfield has come out in the top ten across the country. 
 
In other developments the Women’s Health Unit and Trinity ward have been completely 
revamped in the style of the Chesterfield Birth Centre to offer a more homely environment for 
mothers and their babies. The Hospital has also invested £1.5million in order to boost the 
number of qualified nurses across the Trust. 
 
Royal Derby Hospitals 
 
In 2012/13 the PCTs worked closely with Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in order to 
provide high quality services to our patients. The involvement of clinicians in the 
commissioning of services has been a focus this year. Clinical Improvement Groups (CIGs) 
in core service areas have been established to enable GPs and hospital consultants, with 
managerial support, to work together to improve patient pathways and ensure equity of 
treatment.   
 
There has been a range of outcomes from the different CIGs and as a direct result we have 
already seen some pathways and services being transformed for the benefit of patients, 
whilst also positively impacting upon hospital clinicians and GPs.    
 
Patient experiences have also been improved by ensuring that patients are treated in the 
most appropriate procedure setting. Based upon GPs and hospital clinicians reviewing 
clinical best practice some changes have been made; for example procedures taking place 
as an outpatient appointment rather than a day case. This initiative has saved the NHS 
£1million in the last year at Derby Hospitals.   
 
Effective referrals from primary care, and improvements to pathways led by the CIGs have 
resulted in 92.5% of all admitted patients receiving their treatment within 18 weeks (national 
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target 90%), and 97.6% of all non-admitted patients receiving their treatment within 18 
weeks (national target 95%). 
 
There has been significant pressures on A&E performance as a result of a very cold winter. 
Despite failing to achieve the year-end 95% target for patients waiting less than four hours 
for treatment, this year did see the target delivered or bettered in seven successive months.  
2012/13 has seen strong delivery of cancer targets, with all waiting times being better than 
the national targets. 
 
 
Primary Care 
 
Primary care refers to the services provided by GP practices, dentists, pharmacists, 
opticians and their teams. The Government reforms of the NHS in England will have a 
significant impact upon how primary care is delivered in the future. The development of 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) across Derbyshire will provide support to primary 
care services locally, but the responsibility for the actual commissioning of primary care 
services will move from the PCTs to the NHS Commissioning Board  
 
Dental Services 
 
Funding secured from the Department of Health means that a minimum of 1,000 additional 
Minor Oral Surgery cases will be completed over the next year. This funding will have a 
major impact on waiting lists for these treatments and for orthodontics, particularly in the city 
where waiting lists are longer. 
 
GP Developments 
 
A purpose-built medical centre in Clay Cross opened its doors to patients on 1 October 
2012. The Bridge Street surgery is the new home for doctors, nurses and practitioners from 
Clay Cross Medical Centre, and can cater for 5,500 patients, with plans in place to increase 
this number as the multi-million regeneration in the area gets under way. 
 
Plans are also underway to replace unfit buildings in Creswell and Langwith. The contract for 
the surgery at Creswell and its Langwith branch was secured by Primary Provider Ltd, who 
are now working with the local NHS to secure improved premises. 
 
A new surgery at Inkersall also opened in December, as part of the Holywell Medical Group. 
 
 
Urgent Care 
 
Making sure that people can get care urgently when they need it is vitally important, and is 
particularly challenging at certain times, for example during extreme weather conditions, or 
extended Bank Holidays when some services are closed. A number of initiatives are in place 
or being developed in Derbyshire to ensure the local health system can cope. 
 
NHS 111 Service 
 
NHS 111 is now in place across the whole of Derbyshire. It is available 24 hours a day, 365 
days a year. Calls from landlines and mobile phones are free. If any patient is found to need 
an ambulance, staff operating the new 111 service can dial an ambulance for them 
immediately via their computer system. This new service was rolled out in phases and finally 
covered the whole area in September 2012. To date call volumes have been higher than 
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expected, and as an independent survey from CFEP UK shows levels of patient satisfaction 
are very high. 
 
Winter Wise Campaign 
 
Winter’s combination of bad weather and Bank Holidays can put health services under 
pressure. In order to ensure that people stay healthy and are aware of the alternatives 
available should they need care, a winter communications plan is agreed each year. For 
2012/13 the PCTs repeated their successful Be Winterwise campaign, with top ten tips for 
winter being promoted through printed material, video, websites, local media and local 
events. Local health and social care organisations worked together to make sure the 
information was distributed as widely as possible. 
 
 
Mental Health Services 
 
The PCTs successfully transferred lead Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
commissioning arrangements to NHS Hardwick CCG, acting on behalf of the other 
Derbyshire CCGs. 
 
A major achievement has been the procurement of Improved Access to Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT) for primary care through an Any Qualified Provider (AQP) approach. From 
April 2013 onwards all areas of the County will have access to an IAPT provider.  
 
Work has continued with the local authority on developing services to people with autism 
and there is now a pathway for diagnosis which has seen a substantial increase in referrals.  
Both councils have also been working with the local NHS to improve services for people with 
Dementia. Engagement events have taken place and, responding to the results of this work, 
increased investment in activities such as ‘singing for the brain’ has been made. Training for 
care home staff in dementia has also been provided and a clinical summit arranged with the 
aim of increasing dementia diagnosis and agreeing a refreshed strategy for dementia going 
forward.  
 
A key area of work has been the increased demand for acute mental health beds which 
resulted in people being sent out of Derbyshire. A crisis house has been piloted as an 
alternative to admission, alongside increased investment in home support staff. Derbyshire 
Health Care Foundation Trust has been working on reducing ward sizes to improve patient 
experience, and as a consequence of these initiatives there has been a significant reduction 
in out of area placements. 
 
 
Learning Disability Services 
 
A clinical reference group for Learning Disability has been established to support good 
practice, innovation and CCG engagement with clinicians from provider organisations and 
the councils.  
 
Some joint investment has been agreed with the local authorities so that we can fully 
progress all of the government’s recommendations following the Winterbourne Review. All 
patients have been reviewed and work has started on a revised pathway to support people 
with complex needs out of hospital settings. 
 
Derbyshire County Council is working with the NHS to review the short breaks service, and 
there are plans to continue the engagement and review into 2013 with consultation on any 
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proposals in the autumn. The work to date shows that there could be improved access, 
improved choice and increased take up of support.  
 
 
Community Health Services  
 
Derbyshire Community Health Services (DCHS) have worked with the PCTs in 2012/13 to 
begin the transformation of services that will allow more people to be treated and cared for 
within the community rather than in a hospital bed. They have engaged with the four CCGs 
to discuss how local services should be structured and have begun to shift resources into 
the community teams to meet those requirements.   
 
One of the major success stories this year has been the development of a Single Point of 
Access model that facilitates the improved flow of patients through the health and social care 
system. This has been a joint initiative between the commissioners, the acute hospitals and 
social services so that acute admissions are either prevented or arrangements are made to 
speed up discharge by joint working to ensure that appropriate measures are put in place to 
allow patients to be cared for in a community setting. 
 
DCHS have continued to reap the benefit of the JONAH system that allows them to manage 
their inpatient beds and rehab patients and ensure that their discharge is on time. Length of 
stay and the number of delayed transfers of care have both dropped this year, freeing up 
beds and resources to deal with more patients. Community JONAH will be rolled out in 
2013/14 which will allow them to manage patient care within a community setting. 
 
DCHS has also been working towards achieving Foundation Trust status. As one of the first 
two Community service providers to go through the process, they have been subject to wide 
ranging assessment and audit throughout the year and hope to achieve authorisation in 
2013/14. 
 
 
East Midlands Ambulance Service 
 
Derbyshire is the lead commissioner for East Midlands Ambulance Service. For 2012/13 the 
Trust did not meet the A19 (95% within 19 minutes for category A calls). The commissioning 
team have worked closely with the Trust to agree actions to improve performance. 
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3 Stakeholders and Staff 
 
 
As a public service, the NHS has a duty to engage with the public, patients and other local 
stakeholders. It is also vital that the NHS values and supports its staff, and this has been 
particularly true over the past year as the NHS reforms have come into play. 
 
 
Engagement Update 
 
During a year of very significant changes in the local and national NHS, the PCTs and CCGs 
have continued to share information with the public about the changes and ensure that local 
people are engaged in decision making about changes to services that will affect themselves 
and their families. 
 
Recognising the fact that other difficult decisions will have to be made, the public were 
invited to a series of public meetings across the county around ‘21st Century Healthcare’.  
Those attending were given an outline of the new NHS structures and the financial savings 
that have to be made in the NHS over the next few years. They were involved in developing 
a set of decision making principles that will be applied to all proposed service changes, 
ensuring consistency and fairness. Further consultation and engagement, particularly 
relating to moves towards more integrated care, is planned for 2013.     
 
Developing engagement with CCGs 
 
A significant part of the CCGs’ new role of holding healthcare budgets and commissioning 
services for local people will involve continuing to engage patients and the public in decision 
making. The PCTs have worked with the new organisations to develop effective engagement 
plans that will continue to build on the processes and engagement activities that are already 
happening across Derbyshire. These include developing various patient groups, public 
events and consultations, working with Derby and Derbyshire LINk/HealthWatch, and 
developing newsletters and websites to keep the public informed.    
 
Most GP practices in Derbyshire now have a Patient Participation Group (PPG) and the new 
organisations all recognise the value of these groups at practice and CCG level. They are a 
representative patient voice who will work with service commissioners and be equipped to 
challenge decisions that they do not feel are being made in the interest of patients.  
Members of the different PPGs are being encouraged to network with each other through 
regular meetings in each CCG. They are giving and receiving information, being involved 
decision making and learning from each other to ensure their individual groups are 
empowered and informed enough to make a difference.           
 
 
Complaints Report 
 
For 2012/13 the PCT Cluster continued to operate the complaints services for both the 
statutory PCTs using a single merged team. Because complaints was a statutory function of 
the PCTs this report sets out the specific numbers of cases handled by each of the Cluster’s 
PCTs but the remainder of this report is written from a Cluster perspective. 
 
Complaints received by the Cluster were handled in accordance with the Local Authority 
Social Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009. The 
complaints team also implemented the Health Service Ombudsman Principles for Remedy in 
managing individual complaints. The Cluster regarded these principles as being essential in 



9 
 

shaping its approach to complaints as they enabled identification of lessons that could be 
learned in order to deliver improvements in services; and they ensured the complainant was 
at the centre of the complaints handling process. Where it was possible to put things right for 
the complainant, the Cluster sought to do so. Where this is not possible the Cluster sought to 
ensure improvements were made so that lessons learned from the complaint were acted 
upon. 
 
County Complaints 
 
For the County PCT 131 written complaints were received over the period 1 April 2012 to 28 
February 2013 compared to 126 received in 2011/2012, of which 30 specifically relate to the 
functions of NHS Derbyshire County. Of the 30 PCT commissioning complaints received, 
five were fully upheld, one partly upheld. 
 
City Complaints 
 
For the City PCT 89 complaints were received over the period 1 April 2012 to 28 February 
2013 compared to 121 received in 2011/2012, of which 8 specifically relate to the functions 
of NHS Derby City.  The main reason for the drop in numbers is a significant drop in the 
number of complaints regarding the PCT’s commissioning activity. Of the complaints 
received, challenges to PCT policy for fertility treatment and Procedures of Low Clinical 
Value, which includes 2nd eye cataract and varicose vein surgery, account for 50% of the 
complaints received. 
 
Of the eight PCT commissioning complaints received, one has been fully upheld and one 
partly upheld. 
 
Key Achievements 
 
• Managing and maintaining the quality of the complaints service during the transition to 

new NHS bodies that will be replacing the functions of the PCTs from 1 April 2013 
onwards. 

• Changing the reporting mechanism to ensure CCGs received specific reports relating to 
complaints from their registered and resident population. 

• Working with emergent CCGs and the local commissioning support unit to develop a 
complaints handling service offering that will ensure the CCGs are able to meet the 
duties and standards expected of them in handling complaints made to them about the 
NHS. 

• Ensuring that any complaints that necessarily remained open on 1 April 2013 are 
transferred to an appropriate body for completion. 

 
Lessons Learned 
 
A number of key lessons arising from the complaints work have been learned and acted 
upon: 
 
• Amendments made to the Out of Hours Pharmacy cover arrangements system. 
• Guidance issued to all GP practices around the appropriate scheduling of child 

immunisations and the need to ensure timely recall. 
• Options are to be considered to improve local access to specialist endodontic treatment, 

not currently available. 
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Supporting Staff 
 
It is recognised that this is a difficult time for staff and we have invested in programmes to 
help staff to manage change. This is underpinned by having access to various internal 
support services where necessary. We have run two staff support programmes - Managing 
Change in the city and Fairplace in the county - which have been well attended and 
received, where staff have been able to access programmes such as self-marketing, job 
hunting techniques and managing your career through change. This work is in addition to the 
ongoing support for staff through the Resolve service, and implementation of key policies 
such as the Equal Opportunities Policy. 
 
Staff Engagement 
 
A series of communication channels have continued to operate within the PCT cluster to 
ensure all staff are kept up to date with key information throughout this time of change: 
 
• Regular staff meetings and meetings with union representatives for staff moving to the 

new structures within and outside the NHS   
• Open Door sessions with the Director of HR 
• Weekly updates and a monthly newsletter 
• 1:1 Meetings have been held between line managers and staff at regular intervals to 

ensure that all staff have protected time with their line manager to discuss the 
implications of organisational change on them and their role 

 
As progress has been made towards transition, new processes have been put in place by 
CCGs, Public Health and others to ensure staff continue to be informed and involved as they 
transfer to new organisations. 
 
Staff sickness absence  
 
NHS 
Derbyshire 
County 

2012/13     2011/12 

Total days lost     1,911        19,612 
Total staff 
years 

       297                                     
2,655 

Average 
working days 
lost 

   
     6.44 

7.39 
 
The above figures have been calculated based on the relevant calendar year rather than 
financial year. The comparator figures for 2011-12 included Derbyshire Community Health 
Services (DCHS) staff. On the 31 March 2011, 98.01% of the total PCT staff, in terms of 
whole time equivalent numbers, transferred to DCHS NHS Trust when the organisation 
became a Trust in its own right and so are not included in the 2012 figures. 
 
NHS Derby 
City 

2012/13     2011/12 

Total days lost     1432         1,981 
Total staff 
years 

        
147                                    325 

Average 
working days 
lost 

       9.7 
 6.1 
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4 Performance 
 
 
PCTs are required to meet, or ensure their provider services meet, a wide range of targets 
across all aspects of health care. Monitoring these targets assures the PCTs that local 
services are achieving what they should, and means that local stakeholders and members of 
the public can compare local performance with that from around the country. Performance is 
continually monitored and reported throughout the year, with Performance Reports going to 
the PCT cluster board every month.  
 
Some key performance targets which support the organisations’ strategic aims are detailed 
in the tables below. 
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Clinical Quality and Safety  
 
The Clinical Quality teams from NHS Derby City and NHS Derbyshire County provide 
assurance to the cluster board on the quality and patient safety of the services 
commissioned. Each Clinical Commissioning Group has now appointed a Chief Nurse to 
ensure that this focus is maintained going forward. 
 
The annual cycle of clinical quality activity includes: 
 
• Development of Quality Schedules  
• Monitoring of contracts through Contract Management Boards and Quality Assurance 

Groups 
• Analysing data and identifying themes for targeted performance management such as 

Infection Control and Delivering Single Sex Accommodation  
• A minimum of four quality visits a year for each main contract 
• Monitoring and review of providers’ Serious Untoward Incidents  
• Advice on quality indicators for service specifications 
• Regular reports to the cluster board and CCG Governing Bodies. 
   
Patient safety is a key element of all Quality Assurance Group meetings with providers, and 
includes infection prevention and control and serious incident reporting. An early warning 
system has been developed to manage risks associated with patient safety. 
 
 
Information Governance 
 
Information governance continues to be a high priority for both PCTs and the emerging 
Clinical Commissioning Groups. It is recognised that the most significant risk to 
confidentiality and information security is human behaviour. A comprehensive mandatory 
programme of staff training to maintain awareness of confidentiality and information security 
has been delivered, supported by the publication of an information governance handbook for 
all staff. 
   
There were no personal data breaches classed as Serious Untoward Incidents during 
2012/13.  
 
 
Risk and Preparedness  
 
In order to promote and embed risk management systems, during 2012/13 the risk 
management team has been working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups and the public 
health teams on the mapping of their risk processes and commissioning objectives. 
Accordingly, all Derbyshire CCGs now have assurance frameworks in place. A process of 
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escalating system-wide risks has been agreed, linking in with risk registers for each of the 
emerging organisations. 
 
Up until 31 March 2013, NHS Derby City and NHS Derbyshire County continued to meet 
their responsibilities as Category 1 Responders as defined by the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004. We have participated in multi-agency plans and exercises designed to test our 
response to a range of emergencies to ensure our emergency preparedness remains robust. 
We have in place a Major Incident Plan that is fully compliant with the requirements of the 
NHS Emergency Planning Guidance 2005 and all associated guidance.  
 
 
Sustainability 
 
An estate rationalisation programme has proved extremely successful with the consolidation 
of staff into a smaller number of sites across Derbyshire. The programme will significantly 
reduce the PCTs’ carbon footprints, save money to ensure best use of limited resources and 
improve the standard of accommodation for staff.  
 
A new Sustainable Development Plan incorporating good practice and targets from both the 
City and the County Carbon Management Plans was also agreed during 2012/13. 
 
 
Board Membership 
 
The table below provides details of the membership of the PCT Cluster Board during 
2012/13. 
 
Mark Todd, Chair  
George Tansley, Non-Executive Director*  
Brian Walsh, Non-Executive Director  
Pauline Ambrey, Non-Executive Director  
Ian Forrest, Non-Executive Director  
Ian Gibbard, Non-Executive Director*  
Paul Devlin, Non-Executive Director*  
Alison McKinna, Non-Executive Director * Until 31 August 2012 
David Black, Medical Director  Until 30 September 2012 
Maggie Boyd, Director of Nursing  Until 30 September 2012 
Andy Leary, Director of Finance  Until 30 September 2012 
Ian Matthews, Senior Clinical Advisor  
Georgina McLennan, Assoc. Director of Corporate 
Governance 

 

Karen Rhodes, Associate Director of Human Resources  
David Sharp, Chief Executive  Until 30 September 2012 
Phil DaSilva, Director of Commissioning Development  Until 15 December 2012 
Trish Thompson, Director of External Relations   Until 30 September 2012 
Derek Ward, Director of Public Health - City  
Martin Whittle, Director of Assurance  
Bruce Laurence, Director of Public Health - County  Until 5 February 2013 
Derek Bray, Chief Executive From 1 October 2012 
Helen Pledger, Director Of Finance  From 1 October 2012 
Vikki Taylor, Director Of Commissioning  From 1 October 2012 
Doug Black, Medical Director  From 1 October 2012 
Barbara Stuttle, Nurse Director  From 1 November 2012 
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Julie Bolus, Nurse Director  From 1 December 2012 
Elaine Michel, Director of Public Health - County From 6 February 2013 

* Audit Committee members 
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
The table below provides details of Directors’ declarations of interest. 
 
Name Designation Interest 
Pauline 
Ambry 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Trustee for creative support, a charity providing housing 
support and care to vulnerable adults including people 
with learning difficulties, mental health, frail elderly.  
Creative Support mainly contracts for social care services 
but sometimes NHS services. 

Paul Devlin Non-Executive 
Director 

Head of Inclusion at Action for Children.  Partner is a 
member of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS 
Trust Board, an Operations Director of British Red Cross 
and Chair of Chesterfield Sexual Abuse and Incest Line  

Ian Gibbard Non-Executive 
Director & Chair 
of Audit 
Committee 

Director of University of Derby (Company limited by 
guarantee) Director of High Peak CAB (Company limited 
by guarantee).  Both organisations contract for NHS 
services. 

Bruce 
Laurence 

Acting Director of 
Public Health 
County 

Trustee of Emergency Nutrition network. I work with 
Derbyshire County Council that has numerous links, 
including financial ones with the PCT.   

Andy Leary Director of 
Finance, 
Performance and 
Informatics 

Parish Councillor - Winthorpe and Langford Parish 
Council 

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical 
Advisor 

Partner at Dr Gates and Partners, Chapel St Medical 
Centre, Spondon. The practice is a member of Southern 
Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group and the DCN 
Locality. 

Alison 
McKinna 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Husband employed by Derbyshire Community Health 
Services NHS Trust. 

George 
Tansley 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Director of Etete Ltd 

Mark Todd Chairman Chair of Trustees, Motor Neurone Disease Association. 
Brian Walsh Non-Executive 

Director 
Chairman of Keyring: National charity for people with 
Learning Disabilities.   
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4 Finance Report 
 
This section includes the financial review and remuneration reports. These are prepared in 
accordance with the 2012/13 PCTs Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of 
Health. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the 
NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory 
Board. Where the PCT Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the 
accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of 
the PCT for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. 
 
The statutory accounts contain comprehensive, detailed information about the financial 
performance of the PCTs as well as the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
 
Financial Review 
 
The main source of funding for the Primary Care Trusts is allocations (Parliamentary 
Funding) from the Department of Health. The Revenue Resource for 2012/13 for Derbyshire 
County was just over £1.2billion, for Derby City it was £473million. 
Both NHS Derby City and NHS Derbyshire County successfully achieved all four of their 
financial targets during the year. The position of the PCTs against these targets in 2012/13 is 
as follows: 
 
Revenue 
 
PCTs are required to keep within their revenue resource limit. NHS Derby City was 
£4,490,000 below its revenue resource limit of £473.5million. This surplus represents the 
amount that the PCT was required to achieve in order to meet its share of the NHS national 
target. 
  
For 2012/13 NHS Derbyshire County was required to deliver a surplus of £12million in order 
to meet its share of the NHS national target. This was achieved with a final underspend of 
£12,407,000 below its revenue resource limit of £1,223.1million.  
 
Capital 
 
PCTs receive a separate allocation to cover capital expenditure on assets over £5,000 in 
value which will be used for a period of more than one year. In 2012/13 NHS Derbyshire 
County utilised £413,000 against a capital resource limit of £1,174,000. In 2012/13 NHS 
Derby City utilised £152,000 of its available capital resource which comprised a resource 
limit of 40,000 plus proceeds of £417,000 from the sale of surplus assets.  
 
Cash 
 
PCTs are also allocated a cash limit by the Department of Health, which is the amount of 
cash needed to support their revenue and capital expenditure. This limit is slightly less than 
the combined total of revenue and capital resource limits, reflecting the fact that the actual 
payment of some expenditure falls into a different accounting period to the one covered by 
this report. For 2012-13, NHS Derby City operated within its allocated cash limit of 
£466.8million and NHS Derbyshire County within its allocated cash limit of £1,203.1million. 
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Better Payment Practice Code 
 
The Better Payment Practice Code (BBPC) requires the PCTs to pay all valid invoices by the 
due date, or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later. Both PCTs have a 
formal performance target of paying 95% of valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days 
of receipt, whichever is the later. Performance for the PCTs is shown in the tables below. 
 
NHS Derbyshire County 
 2012-13  2012-13  2011-12  2011-12 
 Number  £000  Number  £000 
Non-NHS Payables        
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the 
Year 19,193  93,099  20,174  91,986 
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 
Target 18,993  92,198  19,990  90,803 
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid 
Within Target 98.96%  99.03%  99.09%  98.71% 
        
NHS Payables        
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 5,211  806,564  5,323  791,143 
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 
Target 5,168  805,976  5,295  791,012 
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid 
Within Target 99.17%  99.93%  99.47%  99.98% 
 
 
NHS Derby City 
 2012-13  2012-13  2011-12  2011-12 
 Number  £000  Number  £000 
Non-NHS Payables        
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in 
the Year 8,279  46,619  9,721  50,146 
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid 
Within Target 8,253  46,464  9,527  50,064 
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid 
Within Target 99.69%  99.67%  98.00%  99.84% 
        
NHS Payables        
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the 
Year 3,729  320,953  3,460  316,158 
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 
Target 3,724  320,945  3,381  316,158 
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid 
Within Target 99.87%  100.00%  97.72%  100.00% 
 
 
Prompt Payments Code 
 
The Prompt Payment Code is a payment initiative developed by Government with The 
Institute of Credit Management (ICM) to “tackle the crucial issue of late payment and help 
small businesses”. Details of the code can be found at www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk. 
Both PCTs have signed up to the code. 

http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/
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External Audit 
 
Grant Thornton is NHS Derby City’s external auditor. In 2012/13 fees totalling £104,263 
were paid to them in respect of the statutory external audit. The PCT also incurred other 
non-statutory audit fees of £134,442 including Internal Audit fees with East Midlands Internal 
Audit Services (hosted by Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust), payment to the Audit 
Commission as part of national audit initiative undertaken across the NHS and £750 with 
Grant Thornton for non-statutory work. As far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the PCT’s auditors are unaware. Assurances regarding Auditor 
independence have been included within reports submitted to the PCT Audit Committee.  
 
NHS Derbyshire County’s external auditor for 2012/13 is KPMG. The fee for services carried 
out in relation to the statutory audit for the year was £158,273. In addition to statutory audit 
work, there was an additional charge of £12,360, for Closedown and Transition Plans 
Assurance work. Assurances regarding Auditor independence have been included within 
reports submitted to the PCT Audit Committee.  
 
The directors of both PCTs have taken all the appropriate steps to make themselves aware 
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the PCTs’ auditors are aware of that 
information. 
 
 
Running Costs 
 
The PCTs measure their running costs according to the definitions provided by the 
Department of Health. Running costs are a measure of the cost to operate a PCT and 
include both pay and non-pay costs. The costs for the PCTs are given below. 
 
NHS Derbyshire County 
 Total  Commissioning  Public  
   Services  Health 
PCT Running Costs 2012-13      
Running costs (£000s) 19,327  14,438  4,889 
Weighted population (number in units) 726,424  726,424  726,424 
Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 26.61  19.88  6.73 
 
NHS Derby City 
 Total  Commissioning  Public  
   Services  Health 
PCT Running Costs 2012-13      
Running costs (£000s) 10,539   8,993   1,546  
Weighted population (number in units) 284,272   284,272   284,272  
Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 37   32   5  

 
Remuneration Report 
 
The Terms of Service and Remuneration Committee’s role is to advise the Board on the 
appropriate remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Executive and the senior 
executive management team. During the year the following members served on the PCTs’ 
Committee: 
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• Mark Todd   Chairman (Chair) 
• David Sharp   Chief Executive 
• Alison McKinna  Non-Executive Director 
• George Tansley  Non-Executive Director 
 
It is the policy of the PCTs that Executive Directors are remunerated under the NHS Very 
Senior Manager Pay Framework. They also benefit from service related pensions and other 
benefit arrangements that are applicable to all staff. Directors’ performance is monitored by 
the Chairman and Chief Executive against corporate objectives set by the Board. During 
2012/13 under the Very Senior Managers Pay Framework no performance related payment 
was made to directors, in line with the national framework guidance. There have however 
been payments made under the national clinical excellence reward scheme, in line with 
guidance these payments are shown as bonus payments in the remuneration report tables 
below. There were no awards made to past senior managers in the last financial year, and 
no special severance payments have been made. 
 
Senior manager contracts are substantive and the notice periods for all of them are six 
months by organisation and three months by individual. Provision for compensation for early 
termination is in line with Agenda for Change terms and conditions. In the event of early 
termination the liability to the PCT is one month’s pay for each completed year of reckonable 
service up to a maximum of two years. The PCTs’ statutory accounts provide detailed 
disclosure notes on how pension liabilities are treated in the accounts (see note 7.5 in the 
full accounts). 
 
Details of salaries and allowances are given in the tables below. 
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Derbyshire County PCT Salaries and Allowances 
 
The following Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2013 has been audited. 
This consists of tables of senior managers' salaries and allowances, pension benefits and 
the accompanying narrative. 
 
The NHS Operating Framework for 2010-2011 required PCTs to develop formal cluster 
arrangements and as a result of this Derby City PCT and Derbyshire County PCT 
commenced formally working as a Cluster with effect from 1 April 2011. These arrangements 
included having a joint Board. With effect from 1st October 2012 there were further changes 
to Board membership to reflect the appointment of Directors to the Nottinghamshire and 
Derbyshire Local Area Team of the NHS Commissioning Board (LAT) and the dual 
responsibilities some directors had up until 31 March 2013.  
 
The senior manager’s total salary for the period is shown in the table below, along with prior 
year comparatives as applicable. The salary below covers all NHS organisations that the 
senior managers have worked for during 2012-13, rather than just the PCT, the Derbyshire 
Cluster or the Local Area Team. For Local Area Team managers the prior-year comparators 
are shown for completeness, even though the managers were not necessarily undertaking 
work on behalf of the PCT. 
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 Name  Title £000 £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £00 

Mark 
Todd 

Chairman 35-40       35-40       

David 
Sharp 

Chief Executive 150-
155 

    2 135-
140 

    15 

Derek 
Bray 

Chief Executive 135-
140 

    76 35-40     50 

Martin 
Whittle 

Director of 
Operations and 
Delivery 

120-
125 

    34 120-
125 

    47 

Maggie 
Boyd 

Director of 
Clinical Quality 
& Nursing 

115-
120 

    25 110-
115 

    46 

Trish 
Thompson 

Director of 
External 
Relations 

90-95     33 75-80     30 

Andy 
Leary 

Director of 
Finance, 
Performance & 
Informatics 

120-
125 

      50-55       

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of 
Finance   

100-
105 

      100-
105 

      

David 
Black 

Medical Director 115-
120 

  20-25   110-
115 

  20-25   

Doug 
Black 

Medical Director 95-
100 

      105-
110 

      

Barbara Nurse Director 65-70       - - - - 
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Stuttle 
Julie 
Bolus 

Director of 
Nursing 

30-35       - - - - 

Phil Da 
Silva 

Director of 
Commissioning 
Development 

115-
120 

      115-
120 

      

Vikki Taylor Director of 
Commissioning  

65-70       45-50       

Bruce 
Laurence 

Director of 
Public Health – 
County 

105-
110 

  10-15 15 50-55   5-10 15 

George 
Tansley 

Non Executive 
Director 

5-10       5-10       

Brian 
Walsh 

Non Executive 
Director 

5-10       5-10       

Pauline 
Ambrey 

Non Executive 
Director 

5-10       5-10       

Paul 
Devlin 

Non Executive 
Director 

5-10       5-10       

Ian 
Forrest 

Non Executive 
Director 

5-10       20-25       

Ian 
Gibbard 

Non Executive 
Director 

10-15       10-15       

Alison 
McKinna 

Non Executive 
Director 

0-5       5-10       

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical 
Advisor 

60-65       60-65       

Wendy 
Sunney 

Chief 
Officer,Hardwick 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

30-35       55-60       

Andy 
Gregory 

Chief 
Officer,Hardwick 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

55-60     46 - - - - 

Miles 
Scott 

Chief Finance 
Officer,Hardwick 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

80-85       xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx 

Jackie 
Pendleton 

Chief Officer, 
North 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

95-
100 

      75-80       

Mark 
Smith 

Chief Finance 
Officer, North 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

90-95       xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx 

Rakesh 
Marwaha 

Chief Officer, 
Erewash 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

80-85     40 80-85     36 
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Charlotte 
Allen-
Neale 

Chief Finance 
Officer, 
Erewash 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

45-50       xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx 

Andy 
Layzell 

Chief Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

110-
115 

    22 95-100     17 

Phil 
Cowley 

Chief Finance 
Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

85-90     23 xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx xxxxx 

 
There have been several changes in membership in the 2012-13 financial year. The table 
below reflects changes which are due to Senior Managers leaving or joining the organisation 
rather than any changes as a result of the dual responsibilities some directors had following 
their appointments to the Local Area Team. 
 
Member Post Start date End date 
Alison McKinna Non-Executive Director   Aug-12 
Andy Gregory Chief Officer, Hardwick Clinical 

Commissioning Group Jun-12   
Wendy Sunney Chief Officer, Hardwick Clinical 

Commissioning Group   Sep-12 

Phil Da Silva 
Director of Commissioning 
Development   Dec-12 

Barbara Stuttle Nurse Director Oct-12   
Julie Bolus Director of Nursing Dec-12   

 
Notes:    
• B Laurence is employed by the PCT but 50% of his salary costs are recharged to 

Derbyshire County Council. The figures included in this report are gross, i.e. before any 
recharge. 

• W Sunney is not an employee of the PCT. The remuneration figures included within this 
report relate to payments made to Ms Sunney in a freelance capacity. The contract 
between the PCT and Ms Sunney ended in September 2012. No provision for early 
termination was included within the contract. 

• Benefits in kind relates to the provision of leased motor vehicles  
• The salaries above and below relate to the period that the senior managers have held 

office. Therefore, even if an individual held a contract of employment for the entire 
financial year, only the proportion relating to the senior manager post is shown.  

• Prior year comparators have been marked 'xxxxx' where the member's information was 
not published in 2011-12.    

• Prior year comparators have been marked '-' where the member was appointed to Board 
during the 2012-13 financial year.    

• All Board and Executive Committee member's remuneration has been determined in 
compliance with NHS guidelines.    

 



22 
 

 
In addition to the remuneration details included above, the PCT is also required to report the 
share of the relevant components of remuneration. This information is shown in the table 
below.      
         
Where Board members work across the Derbyshire Cluster their costs are apportioned 
equally across the PCTs, net of any recharges of costs to other organisations.  
           
Where Board members work across the Local Area Team the costs are apportioned as 
agreed between the relevant organisations. The figures below represent the costs incurred 
by the PCT under these arrangements.        
      
Where the work of senior managers is directly attributable to only one PCT, e.g. Clinical 
Commissioning Group Chief Operating Officer, then the total costs are shown.  
            
Prior year comparative information is not included below as the Local Area Team 
arrangements were not in place during that period    
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 Name  Title £000 £000 £000 £00 
Mark Todd Chairman 15-20       
David Sharp Chief Executive 75-80     1 
Derek Bray Chief Executive 30-35       
Martin Whittle Director of Operations 

and Delivery 
5-10     13 

Maggie Boyd Director of Clinical 
Quality & Nursing 

55-60     13 

Trish 
Thompson 

Director of External 
Relations 

45-50     16 

Andy Leary Director of Finance, 
Performance & 
Informatics 

60-65       

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of Finance   20-25       

David Black Medical Director 55-60  10-15   
Doug Black Medical Director 5-10       
Barbara 
Stuttle 

Nurse Director 15-20       

Julie Bolus Director of Nursing 10-15       
Phil Da Silva Director of 

Commissioning 
Development 

55-60       

Vikki Taylor Director of 
Commissioning  

15-20       

Bruce 
Laurence 

Director of Public Health 
– County 

105-110  10-15 15 
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George 
Tansley 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Brian Walsh Non-Executive Director 0-5       
Pauline 
Ambrey 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Paul Devlin Non-Executive Director 0-5       
Ian Forrest Non-Executive Director 0-5       
Ian Gibbard Non-Executive Director 5-10       
Alison 
McKinna 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical Advisor 30-35       

Wendy 
Sunney 

Chief Officer, Hardwick 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

30-35       

Andy Gregory Chief Officer, Hardwick 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

55-60     46 

Miles Scott Chief Finance Officer, 
Hardwick Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

80-85       

Jackie 
Pendleton 

Chief Officer, North 
Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

95-100       

Mark Smith Chief Finance Officer, 
North Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

90-95       

Rakesh 
Marwaha 

Chief Officer, Erewash 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

80-85     40 

Charlotte 
Allen-Neale 

Chief Finance Officer, 
Erewash Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

45-50       

Andy Layzell Chief Officer, Southern 
Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

55-60     11 

Phil Cowley Chief Finance Officer, 
Southern Derbyshire 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

40-45     12 

 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce.  
 
The banded remuneration of the highest paid employee in Derbyshire County PCT in the 
financial year 2012-13 was £102,500 (£137,500 in 2011-12). This was 3.2 times (4 times in 
2011-12) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £32,573 (£34,189 in 2011-
12). 
 
In 2012-13 there were no employees who received remuneration in excess of the highest-
paid director. 
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Using the latest Department of Health guidance where there is a cluster or sharing 
arrangement of a Director or Senior Manager it is the cost to the PCT of an individual that 
identifies them as "highest paid" and not the total of the individual's remuneration. In 2012-
13 several Directors operated in shared posts across different NHS organisations. The PCT 
has only included its share of these shared/cluster posts. 
 
In 2012-13 a greater number of shared post and cluster arrangements were in place 
compared to the previous year. This has resulted in a reduction of Director costs when 
compared to 2011-12. 
 
Full time equivalent remuneration ranged from £6,063 to £102,500 (£7,882 to £150,224 in 
2011-12).  Total full time equivalent remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated 
performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance payments, 
employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 
   
Pension Entitlements of 
Senior Managers in relation to 
the Permanent Board 
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Name  Title  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 

David 
Sharp 

Chief Executive 0-2.5 2.5-5 45-50 135-140 672 752 45 0 

Derek 
Bray* 

Chief Executive 0-2.5 2.5-5 30-35 95-100 521 577 28 0 

Martin 
Whittle 

Director of 
Operations and 
Delivery 

- - 45-50 140-145 881 937 10 0 

Maggie 
Boyd 

Director of 
Clinical Quality 
& Nursing 

- - 35-40 115-120 702 748 10 0 

Trish 
Thompson 

Director of 
External 
Relations 

0-2.5 5-7.5 25-30 85-90 445 517 49 0 

Andy 
Leary 

Director of 
Finance, 
Performance & 
Informatics 

0-2.5 2.5-5 45-50 140-145 829 925 53 0 

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of 
Finance   

2.5-5 12.5-15 15-20 55-60 200 275 65 0 

David 
Black 

Medical Director 0-2.5 0-2.5 40-45 120-125 641 694 19 0 

Doug 
Black 

Medical Director 0-2.5 0-2.5 60-65 180-185 1,311 1,428 50 0 

Julie Bolus Director of 
Nursing 

0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 90-95 451 526 17 0 

Phil Da 
Silva 

Director of 
Commissioning 
Development 

- - 45-50 140-145 958 0 N/A 0 

Vikki 
Taylor 

Director of 
Commissioning  

0-2.5 2.5-5 15-20 55-60 234 265 19 0 

Bruce 
Laurence 

Director of 
Public Health – 
County 

0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 85-90 479 530 26 0 

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical 
Advisor 

5-7.5 15-17.5 55-60 165-170 867 1,041 129 0 

Andy 
Gregory 

Chief 
Officer,Hardwick 

N/A N/A 10-15 40-45 N/A 209 N/A 0 



25 
 

Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

Miles Scott Chief Finance 
Officer,Hardwick 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

0-2.5 0-2.5 15-20 45-50 295 324 14 0 

Jackie 
Pendleton 

Chief Officer, 
North 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

5-7.5 15-17.5 20-25 65-70 312 439 110 0 

Mark 
Smith 

Chief Finance 
Officer, North 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

- - 25-30 85-90 520 540 -6 0 

Rakesh 
Marwaha 

Chief Officer, 
Erewash Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

0-2.5 0-2.5 15-20 45-50 206 227 10 0 

Charlotte 
Allen-
Neale 

Chief Finance 
Officer, Erewash 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

0-2.5 5-7.5 10-15 30-35 116 148 26 0 

Andy 
Layzell 

Chief Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

- - 40-45 120-125 875 908 -12 0 

Phil 
Cowley 

Chief Finance 
Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 30-35 182 218 26 0 

    
Notes:          
• The prior year pension figures for Derek Bray have been revised because of an error 

notified to the PCT by NHS Pensions.        
• As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no 

entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.     
• Where prior year pension data is not available the disclosures are marked N/A. 

         
The above information is based upon all NHS organisations that the senior managers have 
worked for during 2012-13, rather than just the PCT, the Derbyshire Cluster or the Local 
Area Team.          
    
       
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values        
  
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable 
from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to 
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
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leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details 
include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the 
individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional 
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of 
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines 
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.   
       
          
Real Increase in CETV          
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer.  It takes account of 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and 
uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.    
 
Reporting related to the Review of Tax Arrangements of Public Sector Appointees   
 
In line with Treasury guidance the PCT is required to disclose information about “off-payroll 
engagements”. The information relating to Derbyshire County PCT is given below: 
 
Off-payroll engagements at a cost of over £58,200 per annum that were in place as of 31 
January 2012: 
      
Number in place on 31 January 2012 1 
Of which the number that have since come onto the organisation's payroll 0 
Of which the number that have since been re-negotiated/re-engaged to include 
to include contractual clauses allowing the PCT to seek assurance as to their 
tax obligations 

0 

Of which the number that have not been successfully re-negotiated, and 
therefore continue without contractual clauses allowing the (department) to 
seek assurance as to their tax obligations 

0 

Of which the number that have come to an end 1 
Total 1 
 
New off-payroll engagements between 23 August 2012 and 31 March 2013, for more than 
£220 per day and more than six months: 
          

No. of new engagements 0 
Of which the number of new engagements which include contractual clauses 
giving the department the right to request assurance in relation to income tax 
and National Insurance obligations  

0 

Of which the number for whom assurance has been accepted and received 0 
Of which the number  for whom assurance has been accepted and not 
received 0 

Of which the number that have been terminated as a result of assurance not 
being received  0 

Total 0 
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Derby City PCT Salaries and Allowances            
             
The following Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2013 has been audited. 
This consists of tables of senior managers' salaries and allowances, pension benefits and 
the accompanying narrative. 
     
The NHS Operating Framework for 2010-2011 required PCTs to develop formal cluster 
arrangements and as a result of this Derby City PCT and Derbyshire County PCT 
commenced formally working as a Cluster with effect from 1 April 2011. These arrangements 
included having a joint Board. With effect from 1 October 2012 there were further changes to 
Board membership to reflect the appointment of Directors to the Nottinghamshire and 
Derbyshire Local Area Team of the NHS Commissioning Board (LAT) and the dual 
responsibilities some directors had up until 31 March 2013.   
             
The senior manager’s total salary for the period is shown in the table below, along with prior 
year comparatives as applicable. The salary below covers all NHS organisations that the 
senior managers have worked for during 2012-13, rather than just the PCT, the Derbyshire 
Cluster or the Local Area Team. For Local Area Team managers the prior-year comparators 
are shown for completeness, even though the managers were not necessarily undertaking 
work on behalf of the PCT.       
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Name Title £000 £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £00 

Mark 
Todd 

Chairman 35-
40 

      35-40       

David 
Sharp 

Chief Executive 150-
155 

    2 135-
140 

    15 

Derek 
Bray 

Chief Executive 135-
140 

    76 35-40     50 

Martin 
Whittle 

Director of Operations and 
Delivery 

120-
125 

    34 120-
125 

    47 

Maggie 
Boyd 

Director of Clinical Quality & 
Nursing 

115-
120 

    25 110-
115 

    46 

Trish 
Thompson 

Director of External 
Relations 

90-
95 

    33 75-80     30 

Andy 
Leary 

Director of Finance, 
Performance & Informatics 

120-
125 

      50-55       

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of Finance   100-
105 

      100-
105 

      

David 
Black 

Medical Director 115-
120 

  20-25   110-
115 

  20-
25 

  

Doug 
Black 

Medical Director 95-
100 

      105-
110 

      

Barbara 
Stuttle 

Nurse Director 65-
70 

      - - - - 

Julie 
Bolus 

Director of Nursing 30-
35 

      - - - - 

Phil Da 
Silva 

Director of Commissioning 
Development 

115-
120 

      115-
120 

      

Vikki 
Taylor 

Director of Commissioning   65-
70 

      45-
50  
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Derek 
Ward 

Director of Public Health – 
City 

110-
115 

    44 90-95     2 

George 
Tansley 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       5-10       

Brian 
Walsh 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       5-10       

Pauline 
Ambrey 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       5-10       

Paul 
Devlin 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       5-10       

Ian 
Forrest 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       20-25       

Ian 
Gibbard 

Non-Executive Director 10-
15 

      10-15       

Alison 
McKinna 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       5-10       

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical Advisor 60-
65 

      60-65       

Andy 
Layzell 

Chief Officer, Southern 
Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

110-
115 

    22 95-
100 

    17 

Phil 
Cowley 

Chief Finance Officer, 
Southern Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

85-
90 

    23 xxxxx xxxxx xxxx
x 

xxxxx 

 
There have been several changes in membership in the 2012-13 financial year. The table 
below reflects changes which are due to Senior Managers leaving or joining the organisation 
rather than any changes as a result of the dual responsibilities some directors had following 
their appointments to the Local Area Team. 
       
Member Post Start date End date 
Alison McKinna Non-Executive Director   Aug-12 
Phil Da Silva Director of Commissioning Development   Dec-12 
Barbara Stuttle Nurse Director Oct-12   
Julie Bolus Director of Nursing Dec-12   
 
Notes:          
• Benefits in kind relates to the provision of leased motor vehicles                       
• Prior year comparators have been marked 'xxxxx' where the member's information was 

not published in 2011-12.           
• Prior year comparators have been marked '-' where the member was appointed to Board 

during the 2012-13 financial year.          
• All Board and Executive Committee member's remuneration has been determined in 

compliance with NHS guidelines. 
          

In addition to the remuneration details included above, the PCT is also required to report the 
share of the relevant components of remuneration. This information is shown in the table 
below.      
         
Where Board members work across the Derbyshire Cluster their costs are apportioned 
equally across the PCTs, net of any recharges of costs to other organisations.  
           
Where Board members work across the Local Area Team the costs are apportioned as 
agreed between the relevant organisations. The figures below represent the costs incurred 
by the PCT under these arrangements.        
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Where the work of senior managers is directly attributable to only one PCT, e.g. Clinical 
Commissioning Group Chief Operating Officer, then the total costs are shown.  
            
Prior year comparative information is not included below as the Local Area Team 
arrangements were not in place during that period.           
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Name Title £000 £000 £000 £00 

Mark Todd Chairman 15-20       

David 
Sharp 

Chief Executive 75-80     1 

Derek 
Bray 

Chief Executive 30-35       

Martin 
Whittle 

Director of Operations and Delivery 5-10     13 

Maggie 
Boyd 

Director of Clinical Quality & Nursing 55-60     13 

Trish 
Thompson 

Director of External Relations 45-50     16 

Andy 
Leary 

Director of Finance, Performance & Informatics 60-65       

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of Finance   20-25       

David 
Black 

Medical Director 55-60  10-15   

Doug 
Black 

Medical Director 5-10       

Barbara 
Stuttle 

Nurse Director 15-20       

Julie 
Bolus 

Director of Nursing 10-15       

Phil Da 
Silva 

Director of Commissioning Development 55-60       

Vikki 
Taylor 

Director of Commissioning  15-20       

Derek 
Ward 

Director of Public Health – City 110-115     44 

George 
Tansley 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Brian 
Walsh 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Pauline 
Ambrey 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Paul 
Devlin 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Ian 
Forrest 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Ian 
Gibbard 

Non-Executive Director 5-10       

Alison 
McKinna 

Non-Executive Director 0-5       

Dr Ian 
Matthews 

Senior Clinical Advisor 30-35       

Andy 
Layzell 

Chief Officer, Southern Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

55-60     11 
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Phil 
Cowley 

Chief Finance Officer, Southern Derbyshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

40-45     12 

 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce.  
    
The midpoint of the banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Derby City PCT in 
the financial year 2012-13 was £152,500; within the £150,000 to £155,000 band. (£110,095 
in 2011-12) This was 4.5 times (3.4 times in 2011-12) the median remuneration of the 
workforce of £34,189 (£32,573 in 2011-12).   
    
In 2012-13 there were no employees who received remuneration in excess of the highest-
paid director.     
           
Full time equivalent remuneration ranged from £7,000 to £145,000. Total full time equivalent 
remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind 
payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent 
transfer value of pensions.    
          
Pension Entitlements 
of Senior Managers 
in relation to the 
Permanent Board 
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Name Title £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 

David 
Sharp 

Chief 
Executive 

0-2.5 2.5-5 45-50 135-140 672 752 45 0 

Derek 
Bray* 

Chief 
Executive 

0-2.5 2.5-5 30-35 95-100 521 577 28 0 

Martin 
Whittle 

Director of 
Operations 
and Delivery 

- - 45-50 140-145 881 937 10 0 

Maggie 
Boyd 

Director of 
Clinical Quality 
& Nursing 

- - 35-40 115-120 702 748 10 0 

Trish 
Thomp
son 

Director of 
External 
Relations 

0-2.5 5-7.5 25-30 85-90 445 517 49 0 

Andy 
Leary 

Director of 
Finance, 
Performance & 
Informatics 

0-2.5 2.5-5 45-50 140-145 829 925 53 0 

Helen 
Pledger 

Director Of 
Finance   

2.5-5 12.5-15 15-20 55-60 200 275 65 0 

David 
Black 

Medical 
Director 

0-2.5 0-2.5 40-45 120-125 641 694 19 0 

Doug 
Black 

Medical 
Director 

0-2.5 0-2.5 60-65 180-185 1,311 1,428 50 0 

Julie 
Bolus 

Director of 
Nursing 

0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 90-95 451 526 17 0 

Phil Da 
Silva 

Director of 
Commissionin
g 
Development 

- - 45-50 140-145 958 0 N/A 0 

Vikki 
Taylor 

Director of 
Commissionin

0-2.5 2.5-5 15-20 55-60 234 265 19 0 
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g  

Derek 
Ward 

Director of 
Public Health 
– City 

0-2.5 - 0-5 - 6 24 18 0 

Dr Ian 
Matthe
ws 

Senior Clinical 
Advisor 

5-7.5 15-17.5 55-60 165-170 867 1,041 129 0 

Andy 
Layzell 

Chief Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissionin
g Group 

- - 40-45 120-125 875 908 -12 0 

Phil 
Cowley 

Chief Finance 
Officer, 
Southern 
Derbyshire 
Clinical 
Commissionin
g Group 

0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 30-35 182 218 26 0 

   
Notes:     
• The prior year pension figures for Derek Bray have been revised because of an error 

notified to the PCT by NHS Pensions. 
• As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no 

entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.      
• Where prior year pension data is not available the disclosures are marked N/A.   
• The above information is based upon all NHS organisations that the senior managers 

have worked for during 2012-13, rather than just the PCT, the Derbyshire Cluster or the 
Local Area Team.       

          
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
         
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable 
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to 
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details 
include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the 
individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional 
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of 
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines 
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.   
          
Real Increase in CETV 
         
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses 
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
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Reporting related to the Review of Tax Arrangements of Public Sector Appointees    
 
In line with Treasury guidance the PCT is required to disclose information about “off-payroll 
engagements”. The information relating to Derby City PCT is given below.   
 
Off-payroll engagements at a cost of over £58,200 per annum that were in place as of 31 
January 2012: 
   
Number in place on 31 January 2012 0 
Of which the number that have since come onto the organisation's payroll 0 
Of which the number that have since been re-negotiated/re-engaged to include 
to include contractual clauses allowing the PCT to seek assurance as to their 
tax obligations 

0 

Of which the number that have not been successfully re-negotiated, and 
therefore continue without contractual clauses allowing the (department) to 
seek assurance as to their tax obligations 

0 

Of which the number that have come to an end 0 
Total 0 
 
New off-payroll engagements between 23 August 2012 and 31 March 2013 for more than 
£220 per day and more than six months  
 
No. of new engagements 0 
Of which the number of new engagements which include contractual clauses 
giving the department the right to request assurance in relation to income tax 
and National Insurance obligations  

0 

Of which the number for whom assurance has been accepted and received 0 
Of which the number  for whom assurance has been accepted and not 
received 0 

Of which the number that have been terminated as a result of assurance not 
being received  0 

Total 0 
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Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for year ended

31 March 2013
2012-13 2011-12

NOTE £000 £000

Administration Costs and Programme Expenditure

Gross employee benefits 7.1 7,364 10,740

Other costs 5.1 475,019 474,849

Income 4 (14,395) (12,786)

Net operating costs before interest 467,988 472,803

Investment income 9 (73) (80)

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 (37) (101)

Finance costs 11 1,086 1,062

Net operating costs for the financial year 468,964 473,684

Transfers by absorption -(gains) 0

Transfers by absorption - losses 0

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 0

Net Operating Costs for the Financial Year including absorption transfers 468,964 473,684

Of which:

Administration Costs

Gross employee benefits 7.1 5,397 5,899

Other costs 5.1 6,320 6,898

Income 4 (1,178) (945)

Net administration costs before interest 10,539 11,852

Investment income 9 0 0

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 0 0

Finance costs 11 0 0

Net administration costs for the financial year 10,539 11,852

Programme Expenditure

Gross employee benefits 7.1 1,967 4,841

Other costs 5.1 468,699 467,951

Income 4 (13,217) (11,841)

Net programme expenditure before interest 457,449 460,951

Investment income 9 (73) (80)

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 (37) (101)

Finance costs 11 1,086 1,062

Net programme expenditure for the financial year 458,425 461,832

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals put to the Revaluation Reserve 383 93

Net (gain) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment (452) (658)

Net (gain) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0

Net (gain) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on other reserves 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on available for sale financial assets 0 0

Net (gain) /loss on Assets Held for Sale 0

Release of Reserves to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0

Net actuarial (gain)/loss on pension schemes 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year* 468,895 473,119

*This is the sum of the rows above plus net operating costs for the financial year after absorption accounting adjustments.

The notes on pages 1 to 43 form part of this account.
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Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of Financial Position at

31 March 2013
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

NOTE £000 £000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 12 14,241 15,288

Intangible assets 13 43 111

Investment property 15 0 0

Other financial assets 21 504 526

Trade and other receivables 19 0 0

Total non-current assets 14,788 15,925

Current assets:

Inventories 18 0 0

Trade and other receivables 19 2,608 4,393

Other financial assets 36 0 0

Other current assets 22 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 23 183 6

Total current assets 2,791 4,399

Non-current assets held for sale 24 300 700

Total current assets 3,091 5,099

Total assets 17,879 21,024

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 (24,426) (23,444)

Other liabilities 26,28 0 0

Provisions 32 (3,344) (758)

Borrowings 27 (87) (143)

Other financial liabilities 36.2 0 0

Total current liabilities (27,857) (24,345)

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities (9,978) (3,321)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 0 0

Other Liabilities 28 0 0

Provisions 32 0 0

Borrowings 27 (10,962) (11,049)

Other financial liabilities 36.2 0 0

Total non-current liabilities (10,962) (11,049)

Total Assets Employed: (20,940) (14,370)

Financed by taxpayers' equity:

General fund (22,198) (15,572)

Revaluation reserve 1,258 1,202

Other reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity: (20,940) (14,370)

      

The notes on pages 5 to 43 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 1 to 43 were approved by the Audit Committee on 6th June 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Designated Signing Officer: Date:
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Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2013
General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 (15,572) 1,203 0 (14,369)
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2012-13

Net operating cost for the year (468,964) (468,964)

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 452 452

Net gain on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0

Impairments and reversals (383) (383)

Movements in other reserves 0 0

Transfers between reserves* 14 (14) 0

Release of Reserves to SOCNE 0 0
Reclassification Adjustments

Transfers between Revaluation Reserve & General Fund in respect of 

assets transferred under absorption

0 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions 0 0 0
Total recognised income and expense for 2012-13 (468,950) 55 0 (468,895)

Net Parliamentary funding 462,324 462,324
Balance at 31 March 2013 (22,198) 1,258 0 (20,940)

Balance at 1 April 2011 (4,788) 1311 0 (3,477)
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12

Net operating cost for the year (473,684) (473,684)

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 748 748

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Intangible Assets 0 0

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Financial Assets 0 0

Net Gain / (loss) on Assets Held for Sale (65) (65)

Impairments and Reversals (93) (93)

Movements in other reserves 0 0

Transfers between reserves 674 (674) 0

Release of Reserves to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (24) (24)

Reclassification Adjustments

Transfers to/(from) Other Bodies within the Resource Account Boundary 0 0 0 0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions 0 0 0

Total recognised income and expense for 2011-12 (473,010) (108) 0 (473,118)

Net Parliamentary funding 462,226 462,226

Balance at 31 March 2012 (15,572) 1,203 0 (14,369)
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Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of cash flows for the year ended

31 March 2013
2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Operating Cost Before Interest (467,988) (472,803)

Depreciation and Amortisation 1,296 878

Impairments and Reversals 23 528

Other Gains / (Losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest Paid (1,086) (1,062)

Release of PFI/deferred credit 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 1,260 3,801

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 0 0

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 943 (382)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities 0 0

Provisions Utilised (387) (10)

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 2,973 758

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (462,966) (468,292)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest Received 73 80

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment (113) (367)

(Payments) for Intangible Assets 0 (39)

(Payments) for Other Financial Assets 0 0

(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 980 6,500

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible) 0 0

Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets 0 0

Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 43

Loans Made in Respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT 22 0

Rental Revenue 0 0

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities 962 6,217

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing (462,004) (462,075)

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SoFP PFI and LIFT (143) (159)

Net Parliamentary Funding 462,324 462,226

Capital Receipts Surrendered 0 0

Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 0

Cash Transferred (to)/from Other NHS Bodies (free text note required) 0 0

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities 462,181 462,067

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 177 (8)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ( and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period 6 14

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign Currencies 0 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end 183 6
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Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

1. Accounting policies

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of PCTs shall meet the accounting requirements of 

the PCT Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury.  Consequently, the following financial statements have 

been prepared in accordance with the 2012-13 PCTs Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health.  The accounting 

policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful 

and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where 

the PCT Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate 

to the particular circumstances of the PCT for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular 

policies adopted by the PCT are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material 

in relation to the accounts.

The PCT is within the Government Resource Accounting Boundary and therefore has only consolidated interests in other entities 

where the other entity is also within the resource accounting boundary and the PCT exercises in-year budgetary control over the 

other entity.

1.1    Accounting Conventions

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities

Transforming Community Services (TCS) transactions

Under the TCS initiative, services historically provided by PCTs have transferred to other providers - notably NHS Trusts and 

NHS Foundation Trusts.  Such transfers fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury FReM.  

The FReM does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger 

accounting) have not been restated.  Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in 

which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where 

assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the SOCNE, and is disclosed separately from operating 

costs.

Going Concern

Under the provisions of The Health and Social Care Act 2012 (Commencement No.4. Transitional, Savings and Transitory 

Provisions) Order 2013, Derby City PCT was dissolved on 1st April 2013.  The PCT’s functions, assets and liabilities transferred 

to other public sector entities as outlined in Note 42.1 Events after the Reporting Period.  These transfers reflect the 

requirements of the Health and Social Care Act as to where services should transfer to. Note 42.1 provides details of where the 

successor bodies. Where reconfigurations of this nature take place within the public sector, Government accounting requires that 

the activities concerned are to be considered as continuing operations, and so the closing entity prepares accounts on a “going 

concern” basis.

The SOFP has therefore been drawn up at 31 March 2013 on the same basis as in previous years, reporting balances on the 

same basis as would a continuing entity.  In particular, there has been no general revaluation of assets or liabilities, and no 

general disclosures have been made under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation.

Although revaluations and impairments have been recognised in the period these have been routine within the annual cycle of 

activity and are not considered to be material.

Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be 'acquired' only if they are acquired from outside the public sector.  Activities are considered to be 

'discontinued' only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to be 'discontinued' if they transfer from one NHS body to 

another. 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the PCT’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and 

associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 

may differ from those estimates.  The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 

the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical  judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the 

process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 

financial statements.

The LIFT (Local Improvement Finance Trust) lease plus contracts relate to the lease of healthcare facilities along with the 

provision of various services for a 25 year period. The PCT has determined that this contract should be considered as an IFRIC 

12 service concession, since the contract is for the provision of services, which are controlled by the PCT, in relation to an 

infrastructure asset. The PCT also has a significant interest in the residual value of the asset, via an option to buy the facilities in 

the last 6 months of the contract.
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The PCT considers that it is reasonably likely that this option will be exercised, and therefore has recorded the finance option price 

of the building as a bullet lease payment. Consequently the assets are being depreciated over a normal useful life of approximately 

57 years, rather than the lease term.

If in the future the PCT decides not to exercise this option, then the final bullet payment will never become payable, and the assets 

will have to be depreciated over the lease term. This will result in a material restatement of the PCT financial statements. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the Statement of Financial 

Position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year.

1.2    Revenue and Funding

The main source of funding for the Primary Care Trust is allocations (Parliamentary Funding) from the Department of Health within 

an approved cash limit, which is credited to the General Fund of the Primary Care Trust.  Parliamentary funding is recognised in 

the financial period in which the cash is received.

Miscellaneous revenue is income which relates directly to the operating activities of the Primary Care Trust.  It principally 

comprises fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers, as well as public repayment work.  It 

includes both income appropriated-in-aid of the Vote and income to the Consolidated Fund which HM Treasury has agreed should 

be treated as operating income. 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the 

fair value of the consideration receivable.

Where revenue has been received for a specific activity to be delivered in the following financial year, that income will be deferred.

1.3    Care Trust Designation

Derby City Primary Care Trust is not a designated Care Trust.

1.4    Pooled budgets

The PCT has entered into a pooled budget with Derby City Council Local Authority.  Under the arrangement funds are pooled 

under S75 of the NHS Act 2006 for Children's Respite Care activities and a memorandum note to the accounts provides details of 

the joint income and expenditure.  Refer to Note 40.

The pool is hosted by Derby City Council.  As a commissioner of healthcare services, the PCT makes contributions to the pool, 

which are then used to purchase healthcare services.  The PCT accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and 

expenditure of the pool as determined by the pooled budget agreement.

A Partnership Board has been established on which both partner organisations as well as patients and associated voluntary sector 

organisations are represented. This Board is responsible for the overall financial and operational management of the pooled 

budget but delegates day to day management to the host partner, Derby City Council.

1.5   Taxation

The PCT is not liable to pay corporation tax.  Expenditure is shown net of recoverable VAT.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the 

most appropriate expenditure heading or capitalised if it relates to an asset.

1.6   Administration and Programme Costs

Treasury has set performance targets in respect of non-frontline expenditure (administration expenditure).

PCTs therefore analyse and report revenue income and expenditure by "admin and programme"

For PCTs, the Department has defined "admin and programme" in terms of running costs.

The broad definition of running costs includes any cost incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or 

healthcare related services.

Expense incurred under NHS transition redundancy programmes is however classed as "programme" under Treasury 

budgetary control arrangements and so is recorded as such in the financial statements.
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1.7 Property, Plant & Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the PCT;

● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets 

are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal 

dates and are under single managerial control; or

● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or 

collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the 

components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or 

constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the PCT's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at 

their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 

different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows:

   ● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

   ● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been estimated for an exact replacement of 

the asset in its present location.  HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based 

on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site 

can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss.  Cost 

includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for 

assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed by indexation and  depreciation of 

historic cost.  From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased.  The carrying value of existing assets at that date will be written off over 

their remaining useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be 

materially different from fair value. 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset 

previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged 

there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an 

impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 

expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains 

and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive net expenditure in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised.  

Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing 

carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
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1.8 Intangible Assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the 

PCT’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the PCT; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, 

and where the cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for 

example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not 

integral to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on 

research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated 

assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use

● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it

● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset

● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential

● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it

● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date 

when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is 

recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active market 

exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair 

value.  Internally-developed software is held at amortized historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development 

costs and technological advances.  

1.9 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and 

intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption 

of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the PCT 

expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset.  This is specific to the PCT and may be shorter than the 

physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any 

changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or 

where shorter the lease term.

At each reporting period end, the PCT checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current 

assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 

for impairment annually.  

 A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment 

charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  

Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure.  Where an impairment 

loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but 

capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment 

loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) from 2011-

12.  This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and Departments 

may not exceed the limits that they have been set.

AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget. Departments need to 

monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in 

some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in 

that financial year, any expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.
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1.10 Donated assets
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset reserve is no longer 

maintained.  Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to Income. They are 

valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and 

sales are as described above for purchased assets.  Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 

donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.11 Government grants 
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a government grant reserve is no longer 

maintained.  The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to income.  Deferred income is 

recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.12 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 

rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for 

immediate sale in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a 

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their 

previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.  On disposal, the balance for the asset in the revaluation reserve 

is transferred to retained earnings. 

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is 

retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  

Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 

known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and 

that form an integral part of the PCT’s cash management.

1.14 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service 

or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control 

procedures compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which govern the way each 

individual case is handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings including losses which would have been made good 

through insurance cover had PCTs not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal 

revenue expenditure).  

Details of losses and special payments are disclosed in note 38 of these accounts.

1.15 Clinical Negligence Costs
From 1 April 2000, the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) took over the full financial responsibility for all Existing Liabilities Scheme 

(ELS) cases unsettled at that date and from 1 April 2002 all Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) cases. Provisions for 

these are included in the accounts of the NHSLA. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all cases from 1 April 

2000, the legal liability remains with the PCTs.

The NHSLA operates a risk pooling scheme under which the PCT pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return 

settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure in the year that it is due.  The total value of clinical 

negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the PCT is disclosed at Note 32.
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1.16 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, 

*except for bonuses earned but not yet taken which, like leave earned but not yet taken is not accrued for at the year end, on the 

grounds of immateriality. 

Retirement benefit costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an unfunded, defined 

benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of 

State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share 

of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: 

the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the 

accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 

amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the PCT commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment.

There are no employees who are members of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme.

1.17 Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as 

development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.  

Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued 

on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.18 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are 

measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.19 Grant making
Under section 256 of the National Health Service Act 2006, the PCT has the power to make grants to local authorities, voluntary 

bodies and registered social landlords to finance capital or revenue schemes.  A liability in respect of these grants is recognised 

when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have 

been met.

1.20 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the PCT, or a present 

obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of 

the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is 

remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where 

an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
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1.21 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee.  All 

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The PCT as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if 

lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease 

payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on 

interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the PCT’s net operating cost.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease incentives are 

recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether 

they are operating or finance leases.

The PCT as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the PCT’s net investment in the 

leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the PCT’s net 

investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

1.22 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that 

the PCT will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount 

recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, 

taking into account the risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% (2.8% in respect 

of early staff departures) in real terms.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 

receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable 

can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the PCT has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a 

valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main 

features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arsing from the 

restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing 

activities of the entity.

Page 11



Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.23 Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the PCT becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have 

expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’; ‘held to maturity 

investments’; ‘available for sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and 

purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. The PCT's financial assets are included under 

the "Loans and Receivables" category

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active 

market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the PCT assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 

through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence 

of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on 

the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 

rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 

directly, or through a provision for impairment of receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed 

does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

The PCT holds a fixed asset investment in a company established to implement Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) 

schemes. This investment takes the form of a loan to the company and interest on this loan is accounted for within interest 

receivable . There has been no significant relevant change in the predicted performance of the company since the investment was 

made and in the absence of direct sales evidence on the value of these investments, we consider that there is no evidence on 

which to base any revaluation of these investments. These investments are therefore held on the balance sheet at cost and are 

subject to an annual impairment review.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the PCT becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial 

liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or other financial liabilities. The 

PCT's financial liabilities are included under the "other" category.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net 

carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

1.24 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and NHS LIFT transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes (including NHS LIFT) where the 

government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement 

as service concession arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The PCT therefore recognises the 

PFI asset as an item of property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract 

are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where 

necessary:

a)       Payment for the fair value of services received;

b)       Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and

c)       Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

a) Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.

b) PFI and LIFT assets, liabilities, and finance costs

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at 

fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date 

in accordance with the PCT’s approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

LIFT assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured 

at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the PCT’s approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance with 

the principles of IAS 16.

A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the 

fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17.

A LIFT liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the 

present value of the minimum lease payments and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 

17. 
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An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, 

and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost 

and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance 

with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed 

as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent 

finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

c) Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the 

PCT’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially 

at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from 

the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than 

expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as 

an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference 

is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income 

over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the PCT to the operator for use in the scheme

Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the PCT’s 

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Other assets contributed by the PCT to the operator

Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the PCT to the operator before the asset is brought into use, which 

are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the 

contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the PCT, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the 

finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

1.25  Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2012-13. The application of the 

Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2012-13, were they applied in that year:
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - subject to consultation

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation  - subject to consultation

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  - subject to consultation

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation

IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation
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2 Operating segments

2.1 External customers with 10% or more of total expenditure 2012-13

£000

Royal Derby Hospital 192,407

Nottingham University Hospital 5,305

Derbyshire Community Health Services Trust 6,837

Derbyshire Healthcare FT 39,669

East Midlands Ambulance Service 7,690

Total 251,908

3. Financial Performance Targets

3.1  Revenue Resource Limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

 The PCTs' performance for the year ended 2012-13 is as follows:

Total Net Operating Cost for the Financial Year 473,684

Net operating cost plus (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 468,964

Adjusted for prior period adjustments in respect of errors 0 0

Revenue Resource Limit 473,454 476,666

Under/(Over)spend Against Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) 4,490 2,982

3.2 Capital Resource Limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

The PCT is required to keep within its Capital Resource Limit.

Capital Resource Limit 40 (6,602)

Charge to Capital Resource Limit (265) (6,749)
(Over)/Underspend Against CRL 305 147 

3.3 Provider full cost recovery duty

The PCT no longer has a Provider function.

3.4 Under/(Over)spend against cash limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Total Charge to Cash Limit 462,323 462,229

Cash Limit 466,810 462,229

Under/(Over)spend Against Cash Limit 4,487 0

3.5 Reconciliation of Cash Drawings to Parliamentary Funding (current year) 2012-13

£000

Total cash received from DH (Gross) 407,769 

Less: Trade Income from DH (2)

Less/(Plus): movement in DH working balances 0 

Sub total: net advances 407,767 

(Less)/plus: transfers (to)/from other resource account bodies  (free text note required) 0 

Plus: cost of Dentistry Schemes (central charge to cash limits) 9,158 

Plus: drugs reimbursement (central charge to cash limits) 45,399 

Parliamentary funding credited to General Fund 462,324 

Following a review of operations the PCT has concluded that it has only one operating segment covering the operations of the whole 

organisation, that of commissioning healthcare.   All sub sections of the organisation are therefore either deemed to be part of our commissioning 

activities or are not sufficiently material to warrant separate disclosure.

Net expenditure of £468,964,000 (2011/12 £473,684,000) is therefore classified in one operating segment, Commissioning of Healthcare. 
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4 Miscellaneous Revenue
2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fees and Charges 190 0 190 205

Dental Charge income from Contractor-Led GDS & PDS 3,003 0 3,003 2,953

Dental Charge income from Trust-Led GDS & PDS 0 0 0 0

Prescription Charge income 2,141 0 2,141 2,070

Strategic Health Authorities 1 1 0 0

NHS Trusts 898 0 898 394

NHS Foundation Trusts 2,214 11 2,203 1,694

Primary Care Trusts Contributions to DATs 0 0 0 0

Primary Care Trusts - Other 1,788 1,166 622 1,042

Primary Care Trusts - Lead Commissioning 1,998 0 1,998 2,253

English RAB Special Health Authorities 0 0 0 0

NDPBs and Others (CGA) 0 0 0 0

Department of Health - SMPTB 0 0 0 0

Department of Health - Other 2 0 2 1

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 0

Local Authorities 519 0 519 515

Patient Transport Services 0 0 0 0

Education, Training and Research 1,270 0 1,270 1,220

Non-NHS: Private Patients 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS: Overseas Patients (Non-Reciprocal) 0 0 0 0

NHS Injury Costs Recovery 0 0 0 0

Other Non-NHS Patient Care Services 0 0 0 0

Charitable and Other Contributions to Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Receipt of donated assets 0 0 0 0

Receipt of Government granted assets 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 304 0 304 293

Other revenue 67 0 67 146

Total miscellaneous revenue 14,395 1,178 13,217 12,786

Page 16



Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

5. Operating Costs

5.1 Analysis of operating costs: 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Goods and Services from Other PCTs

Healthcare 52,091 52,091 49,986

Non-Healthcare 513 513 0 559
Total 52,604 513 52,091 50,545

Goods and Services from Other NHS Bodies other than FTs

Goods and services from NHS Trusts 23,588 953 22,635 23,392

Goods and services (other, excl Trusts, FT and PCT)) 23 22 1 17
Total 23,611 975 22,636 23,409

Goods and Services from Foundation Trusts 238,334 738 237,596 243,809

Purchase of Healthcare from Non-NHS bodies 40,787 0 40,787 36,781

Social Care from Independent Providers 0 0 0 0

Expenditure on Drugs Action Teams 2,951 0 2,951 2,444

Non-GMS Services from GPs 1,274 0 1,274 1,255

Contractor Led GDS & PDS (excluding employee benefits) 12,581 0 12,581 12,065

Salaried Trust-Led PDS & PCT DS (excluding employee benefits) 0 0 0 0

Chair, Non-executive Directors & PEC remuneration 75 75 0 72

Executive committee members costs 8 8 0 54

Consultancy Services 624 614 10 664

Prescribing Costs 38,337 0 38,337 39,646

G/PMS, APMS and PCTMS (excluding employee benefits) 41,559 0 41,559 40,567

Pharmaceutical Services 0 0 0 0

Local Pharmaceutical Services Pilots 0 0 0 0

New Pharmacy Contract 10,854 0 10,854 10,517

General Ophthalmic Services 3,457 0 3,457 3,287

Supplies and Services - Clinical 3 2 1 71

Supplies and Services - General 912 283 629 955

Establishment 1,779 1,634 145 1,991

Transport 2 0 2 64

Premises 2,378 405 1,973 3,237

Impairments & Reversals of Property, plant and equipment 23 0 23 22

Impairments and Reversals of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 506

Depreciation 1,228 673 555 807

Amortisation 68 68 0 71

Impairment & Reversals Intangible non-current assets 0 0 0 0

Impairment and Reversals of Financial Assets 0 0 0 0

Impairment of Receivables 0 0 0 (2)

Inventory write offs 0 0 0 0

Research and Development Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Audit Fees 104 104 0 174

Other Auditors Remuneration 134 134 0 150

Clinical Negligence Costs 15 0 15 117

Education and Training 101 94 7 801

Grants for capital purposes 726 0 726 20

Grants for revenue purposes 0 0 0 99

Impairments and reversals for investment properties 0 0 0 0

Other 490 0 490 651

Total Operating costs charged to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 475,019 6,320 468,699 474,849

Employee Benefits (excluding capitalised costs)

Employee Benefits associated with PCTMS 0 0 0 0

Trust led PDS and PCT DS 0 0 0 0

PCT Officer Board Members 405 405 0 451

Other Employee Benefits 6,959 4,992 1,967 10,289

Total Employee Benefits charged to SOCNE 7,364 5,397 1,967 10,740

Total Operating Costs 482,383 11,717 470,666 485,589

PCT Officer Board Members' costs above include £0 for early retirements prior to 6th March 1995 (2011/12 £0)

Other Employee Benefits above include £0 for early retirements prior to 6th March 1995 (2011/12 £0).

Employee Benefits above include total employer pension contributions in 2012/13 of £740,059 (2011/12 £826,032.55)

Other Auditors' Remuneration is for services relating to Internal Audit , PBR data validation and the National Fraud Initiative.

Analysis of grants reported in total operating costs

For capital purposes

Grants to fund Capital Projects - GMS 726 0 726 0 

Grants to Local Authorities to Fund Capital Projects 0 0 0 20 

Grants to Private Sector to Fund Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 

Grants to Fund Capital Projects - Dental 0 0 0 0 

Grants to Fund Capital Projects - Other 0 0 0 0 

Total Capital Grants 726 0 726 20 

Grants to fund revenue expenditure

To Local Authorities 0 0 0 0 

To Private Sector 0 0 0 99 

To Other 0 0 0 0 

Total Revenue Grants 0 0 0 99 

Total Grants 726 0 726 119 

Total Commissioning Public Health

Services

PCT Running Costs 2012-13

Running costs (£000s) 10,539 8,993 1,546 

Weighted population (number in units)* 284,272 284,272 284,272 

Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 37 32 5 

PCT Running Costs 2011-12

Running costs (£000s) 11,852 10,281 1,571 

Weighted population (number in units) 284,272 284,272 284,272 

Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 42 36 6 

* Weighted population figures are not available for 2012-13 as the weighted capitation formula for PCT allocations was not updated for 2012-13. This was 

because it was decided to give all PCTs the same percentage growth in their allocations in this transitional year rather than differential growth  based on 

a weighted capitation formula

Therefore, 2011-12 weighted populations have been used when calculated the Running Costs per head of population in 2012-13
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2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Purchase of Primary Health Care

GMS / PMS/ APMS / PCTMS 41,559 40,567

Prescribing costs 38,337 39,646

Contractor led GDS & PDS 12,581 12,065

Trust led GDS & PDS 0 0

General Ophthalmic Services 3,457 3,287

Department of Health Initiative Funding 0 0

Pharmaceutical services 0 0

Local Pharmaceutical Services Pilots 0 0

New Pharmacy Contract 10,854 10,517

Non-GMS Services from GPs 1,274 1,255

Other 0 0

Total Primary Healthcare purchased 108,062 107,337

Purchase of Secondary Healthcare

Learning Difficulties 5,142 4,948

Mental Illness 52,324 50,857

Maternity 14,037 14,551

General and Acute 230,331 229,328

Accident and emergency 16,088 16,687

Community Health Services 34,070 35,308

Other Contractual 752 676

Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 352,744 352,355

Grant Funding

Grants for capital purposes 726 20 

Grants for revenue purposes 0 99 

Total Healthcare Purchased by PCT 461,532 459,811 

PCT self-provided secondary healthcare included above 0 0 

Social Care from Independent Providers 0 0 

Healthcare from NHS FTs included above 239,357 242,772 

5.2 Analysis of operating expenditure by expenditure 

classification
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6. Operating Leases

2012-13 2011-12

6.1 PCT as lessee Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 719 914

Contingent rents 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 719 914

Payable:

No later than one year 17 606 50 673 440

Between one and five years 67 1,813 30 1,910 2,620

After five years 993 200 0 1,193 2,181
Total 1,077 2,619 80 3,776 5,241

Total future sublease payments expected to be received. 0 0

6.2 PCT as lessor

2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Recognised as income

Rental Revenue 304 293

Contingent rents 0 0
Total 304 293

Receivable:

No later than one year 304 293

Between one and five years 1,214 1,171

After five years 4,280 4,419
Total 5,798 5,883

6.3 GP Premises

a) IAS 17 Leases 

b) SIC 27 Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease

c) IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease.

NHS Derby City have a number of operating leases in place. In respect of properties, the PCT leases properties for use in delivering 

community health services. These properties have been acquired at different times and so the leases will have different terms and 

conditions. The lease conditions determine how much rent is paid, when it is reviewed and how much it may escalate by. The PCT has 

also entered into leases in respect of lease cars for use by employees. Lease costs of these cars are shared between the PCT and 

employee. Terms and conditions of these leases are agreed prior to commencement of the lease and fixed for the whole term. The PCT's 

contribution to such leases is fixed according to certain pre-determined criteria linked to the role of the employee. 

The PCT sub lets a number of properties to providers of healthcare services. Terms and conditions of these sub lets are determined on a 

case by case basis and are normally dependent on the type of property being sub let. Agreements with lessees are on an arms length 

basis and the PCT will normally seek professional advice prior to entering into such arrangements. 

NHS Derby City has entered into certain financial arrangements involving the use of GP premises. Disclosure requirements are detailed 

in the following documents:

The PCT  has lease arrangements as part of its contract with GP practices but, because there is no defined term in the arrangements 

entered into, it is not possible to analyse the arrangement over financial years and therefore disclose them as either a finance or an 

operating lease. The financial value included in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for 2012/13 is £2,660,097 (2011/12 

£2,607,983). 
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7. Employee benefits and staff numbers

7.1 Employee benefits 2012-13

Permanently employed Other

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure

Salaries and wages 6,159 4,522 1,637 5,959 4,322 1,637 200 200 0

Social security costs 461 334 127 461 334 127 0 0 0

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 740 537 203 740 537 203 0 0 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 4 4 0 4 4 0 0 0 0

Total employee benefits 7,364 5,397 1,967 7,164 5,197 1,967 200 200 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (table below) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 7,364 5,397 1,967 7,164 5,197 1,967 200 200 0

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 7,364 5,397 1,967 7,164 5,197 1,967 200 200 0

Recognised as:

Commissioning employee benefits 7,364 7,164 200

Provider employee benefits 0 0 0

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 7,364 7,164 200

Employee Benefits - Revenue

There are no employee benefits relating to revenue.

Employee Benefits - Prior- year

Total

Permanently 

employed Other 

£000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits Gross Expenditure  2011-12

Salaries and wages 6,875 6,781 94 

Social security costs 498 498 0 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 826 826 0 

Other pension costs 0 0 0 

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 

Termination benefits 2,541 2,541 0 

Total gross employee benefits 10,740 10,646 94 

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 

Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 10,740 10,646 94 

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 10,740 10,646 94 

Recognised as:

Commissioning employee benefits 10,740 

Provider employee benefits 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 10,740 

7.2 Staff Numbers
2012-13 2011-12

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers

Medical and dental 3 3 0 3 2 1 

Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Administration and estates 121 115 6 133 124 9 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 23 23 0 22 22 0 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 8 8 0 9 9 0 

Social Care Staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 2 2 0 1 1 0 

TOTAL 156 150 6 168 158 10 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 

7.3  Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2012-13 2011-12

Number Number

Total Days Lost 1,432 1,981

Total Staff Years 147 325

Average working Days Lost 9.74 6.10

2012-13 2011-12

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 1

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 155
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7.4 Exit Packages agreed during 2012-13

2012-13 2011-12

Exit package cost band (including any special 

payment element)

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Total number 

of exit 

packages by 

cost band

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Total 

number of 

exit 

packages 

by cost 

band

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Lees than £10,000 0 0 0 0 15 15

£10,001-£25,000 0 1 1 0 16 16

£25,001-£50,000 0 0 0 0 5 5

£50,001-£100,000 0 2 2 0 12 12

£100,001 - £150,000 0 1 1 0 5 5

£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

>£200,000 0 0 0 0 1 1

Total number of exit packages by type (total cost 0 4 4 0 54 54

£s £s £s £s £s £s

Total resource cost 0 281,049 281,049 0 2,178,000 2,178,000

This note provides an analysis of Exit Packages agreed during the year. Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the 

provisions of the NHS Scheme. Where the PCT has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the PCT and not by the NHS pensions 

scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

The total includes a payment of £70,000 in respect of a Compromise Agreement settlement for one employee.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages taken by staff leaving in the year.  Note: The expense associated with these departures 

may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
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7.5 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  Details of the benefits payable under 

these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, 

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary 

of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 

share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 

scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 

the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 

determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations 

shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. Actuarial 

assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal valuations using updated membership data and are accepted 

as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2013, is 

based on the valuation data as 31 March 2012, updated to 31 March 2013 with summary global member and accounting data. In 

undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount 

rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual 

NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS 

Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Accounting valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account 

its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 

2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal 

actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while 

consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of the 

reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015.

The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent 

of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives 

as deemed appropriate. 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used to inform the 

contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.

c) Scheme provisions 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is 

not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits 

can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the 

last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of 

membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total 

pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, 

up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on 

changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer 

Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling 

their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and 

five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 

amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 

approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

[Where the organisation has employees who are members of other schemes, disclosures will be required in respect of them too.]
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8. Better Payment Practice Code

8.1 Measure of compliance 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12 2011-12

Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 8,279 46,619 9,721 50,146

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 8,253 46,464 9,527 50,064
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 99.69% 99.67% 98.00% 99.84%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 3,729 320,953 3,460 316,158

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 3,724 320,945 3,381 316,158
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 99.87% 100.00% 97.72% 100.00%

8.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the PCT to pay all valid invoices by the due date, or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is 

later. The PCT has a formal performance target of paying 95% of valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of  receipt, whichever is the later. 

There was no interest relating to late payments during 2012/13.
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9. Investment Income 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Rental Income

PFI finance lease revenue (planned) 0 0 0 0

PFI finance lease revenue (contingent) 0 0 0 0

Other finance lease revenue 0 0 0 0

Subtotal 0 0 0 0

Interest Income

LIFT: equity dividends receivable 0 0 0 0

LIFT: loan interest receivable 73 0 73 80

Bank interest 0 0 0 0

Other loans and receivables 0 0 0 0
Impaired financial assets 0 0 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Subtotal 73 0 73 80

Total investment income 73 0 73 80

10.  Other Gains and Losses 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE) (17) 0 (17) 101

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (intangibles) 0 0 0 0

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets - other than held for sale 0 0 0 0

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale 54 0 54 0

Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCNE 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at fair value through the SoCNE 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of investment property 0 0 0 0

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Total 37 0 37 101

11.  Finance Costs 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest

Interest on obligations under finance leases 3 0 3 7

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

    - main finance cost 0 0 0 0

    - contingent finance cost 0 0 0 0

Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:

    - main finance cost 875 0 875 886

    - contingent finance cost 208 0 208 169

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 0 0 0 0

Other interest expense 0 0 0 0

Total interest expense 1,086 0 1,086 1,062

Other finance costs 0 0 0 0

Provisions - unwinding of discount 0 0 0

Total  1,086 0 1,086 1,062
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12.1 Property, plant and equipment

2012-13

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

and 

payments on 

account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2012 1,038 13,551 0 0 331 0 973 345 16,238

Additions of Assets Under Construction 77 77

Additions Purchased 0 6 0 19 0 50 0 75

Additions Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions  Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 77 0 (77) 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 (376) 0 0 (8) 0 0 0 (384)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 305 147 0 0 0 0 0 0 452

Impairments/negative indexation (30) (353) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (383)

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 1,313 13,052 0 0 342 0 1,023 345 16,075

Depreciation

At 1 April 2012 0 275 0 0 168 0 429 78 950

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 (360) 0 (7) 0 0 0 (367)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 23

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged During the Year 0 561 0 38 0 594 35 1,228

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 499 0 0 199 0 1,023 113 1,834

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 1,313 12,553 0 0 143 0 0 232 14,241

Purchased 1,313 12,553 0 0 143 0 0 232 14,241

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 1,313 12,553 0 0 143 0 0 232 14,241

Asset financing:

Owned 910 3,422 0 0 143 0 0 232 4,707

Held on finance lease 0 86 0 0 0 0 0 0 86

On-SOFP PFI contracts 403 9,045 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,448

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 1,313 12,553 0 0 143 0 0 232 14,241

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2012 183 1,012 0 0 4 0 0 2 1,201

Movements 275 (219) 0 0 0 0 0 0 56

At 31 March 2013 458 793 0 0 4 0 0 2 1,257

Movements on the Revaluation Reserve for Land and Buildings are due to indexation (69K) and asset disposals (-13K).

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2012-13

£000

Land 0

Buildings excl Dwellings 77

Dwellings 0

Plant & Machinery 0

Balance as at YTD 77
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12.2 Property, plant and equipment

2011-12

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

and 

payments on 

account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2011 5,088 12,561 0 695 331 0 1,146 204 20,025

Additions - purchased 0 6 0 129 0 0 68 0 203

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 671 0 (824) 0 0 12 141 0

Reclassified as held for sale (4,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,000)

Disposals other than by sale 0 (72) 0 0 0 0 (253) 0 (325)

Revaluation & indexation gains 29 719 0 0 0 0 0 0 748

Impairments (64) (29) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (93)

Reversals of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation (15) (305) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (320)

At 31 March 2012 1,038 13,551 0 0 331 0 973 345 16,238

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 0 92 0 130 0 497 47 766

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than for sale 0 (72) 0 0 0 (253) 0 (325)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 15 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 22

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged During the Year 0 553 0 38 0 185 31 807

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation (15) (305) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (320)

At 31 March 2012 0 275 0 0 168 0 429 78 950

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 1,038 13,276 0 0 163 0 544 267 15,288

Purchased 1,038 13,276 0 0 163 0 544 267 15,288

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 1,038 13,276 0 0 163 0 544 267 15,288

Asset financing:

Owned 635 3,743 0 0 163 0 544 267 5,352

Held on finance lease 0 93 0 0 0 0 0 0 93

On-SOFP PFI contracts 403 9,440 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,843

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 1,038 13,276 0 0 163 0 544 267 15,288
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12.3 Property, plant and equipment

Valuation of Land and Buildings:

The latest valuations were carried out by independent experts, providing valuations as at 31 March 2013, 

as part of a rolling programme of valuations. The last valuations carried out were as at 31 March 2012.

The valuations were carried out by Robbie Mapletoft BSc (Hons) Urb Est Surv MRICS (Senior 

Consultant Surveyor). He is employed by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) which is independent and 

external to the PCT.

The valuations have been undertaken having regard to International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) as applied to the United Kingdom public sector and in accordance with HM Treasury guidance, 

International Valuation Standards and the requirements of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 

(RICS) Valuation Standards – Global and UK 7
th
 Edition.  

Public sector bodies including the NHS are required to apply the Revaluation model set out in IAS 16 and 

value their capital assets to fair value. Fair value is defined in IAS16 as the amount for which an asset 

could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms length transaction. The valuation 

of each property is therefore on the basis of Market Value. The Market Value used in arriving at fair value 

for operational assets is therefore subject to the assumption that the property is sold as part of the 

continuing enterprise in occupation. 

The PCT has not received any compensation from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up.

For assets carried at Existing Use Value the value is not materially different from Market Value. 

The method of valuation has not changed from that used in the last set of PCT Accounts for 2011/12.
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13.1 Intangible non-current assets

2012-13

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2012 0 415 0 0 0 415

Additions - purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (9) 0 0 0 (9)

Revaluation & indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 406 0 0 0 406

Amortisation

At 1 April 2012 0 304 0 0 0 304

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (9) 0 0 0 (9)

Revaluation or indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 68 0 0 0 68

In-year transfers to NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 363 0 0 0 363

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 0 43 0 0 0 43

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 comprises

Purchased 0 43 0 0 0 43

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 0 43 0 0 0 43

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0

Movements 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0
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13.2 Intangible non-current assets

2011-12

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2011 0 376 0 0 0 376

Additions - purchased 0 39 0 0 0 39

Additions - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation & indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 0 415 0 0 0 415

Amortisation

At 1 April 2011 0 233 0 0 0 233

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation or indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 71 0 0 0 71

In-year transfers to NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less cumulative dep written down on revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 0 304 0 0 0 304

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 0 111 0 0 0 111

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 comprises

Purchased 0 111 0 0 0 111

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2012 0 111 0 0 0 111
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13.3 Economic Lives of Non-Current Assets

Min Life Max Life

Years Years

Intangible Assets

Software Licences 0 1

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings exc Dwellings 0 52

Plant & Machinery 0 4

Information Technology 0 4

Furniture and Fittings 2 9

Estimated remaining economic lives of assets at 31 March 2013:
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14. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in  2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 0

Changes in market price 23 23

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 23 23

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over Specification of Assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Changes in market price 383

Total impairments for PPE charged to reserves 383

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment 406 0 23

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 0

Changes in market price 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0

Intangible Assets impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over-specification of assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

Changes in market price 0

Total impairments for Intangible Assets charged to Reserves 0

Total Impairments of Intangibles 0 0 0

Financial Assets charged to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0

Financial Assets impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other 0

TOTAL impairments for Financial Assets charged to reserves 0

Total Impairments of Financial Assets 0 0 0

Non-current assets held for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE.

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 0

Changes in market price 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0

Inventories - impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0 0

Changes in Market Price 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0

Total impairments of Inventories 0 0 0

Investment Property impairments charged to SoCNE

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0 0

Changes in Market Price 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0

Total Investment Property impairments charged to SoCNE 0 0 0

Investment Property impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0

Over Specification of Assets 0

Abandonment of Assets in the Course of Construction 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0

Changes in Market Price 0

TOTAL impairments for Investment Property charged to Reserves 0

Total Investment Property Impairments 0 0 0

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve 383

Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - DEL 0 0 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - AME 23 23

Overall Total Impairments 406 0 23

Of which:

Impairment on revaluation to "modern equivalent asset" basis 0 0 0

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above - 

PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SoCNE 

-DEL 0 0 0

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted  Asset Impairments: amount charged to 

SoCNE -AME 0 0 0
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15 Investment property

The PCT does not have any investment property.

16  Commitments

16.1 Capital commitments

The PCT does not have any capital commitments as at 31 March 2013.

16.2 Other financial commitments 

The PCT does not have any other financial commitments as at 31 March 2013.

17 Intra-Government and other balances Current 

receivables

Non-current 

receivables

Current 

payables

Non-current 

payables

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balances with other Central Government Bodies 447 0 1,679 0

Balances with Local Authorities 412 0 2,230 0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 0 0 0 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 935 0 2,532 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 92 0 178 0

Balances with bodies external to government 722 0 17,807 0
At 31 March 2013 2,608 0 24,426 0

prior period:

Balances with other Central Government Bodies 1,241 0 2,482 0

Balances with Local Authorities 39 0 367 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 856 0 3,258 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 2,257 0 17,337 0
At 31 March 2012 4,393 0 23,444 0
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18 Inventories

The PCT does not hold any inventories as at 31 March 2013.

19.1  Trade and other receivables

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables - revenue 1,382 1,932 0 0

NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS receivables - revenue 568 548 0 0

Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 525 0 0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 559 1,208 0 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables 0 0 0 0

VAT 92 165 0 0

Current/non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements 

prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables 7 15 0 0

Total 2,608 4,393 0 0

Total current and non current 2,608 4,393

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

19.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

By up to three months 63 227

By three to six months 0 0

By more than six months 0 1

Total 63 228

19.3  Provision for impairment of receivables

The PCT has not made a provision for impairment of receivables during 2012/13.

Current Non-current

The majority of trade is with other NHS bodies, including other Primary Care Trusts as commissioners for NHS patient care services.  As 

Primary Care Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary. The 

PCT fully expects to recover all amounts outstanding. Where there is doubt about recovery a provision has been made.
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20 NHS LIFT investments Loan Share capital Total

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 477 49 526

Additions 0 0 0

Disposals (22) 0 (22)

Loan repayments 0 0 0

Revaluations 0 0 0

Loans repayable within 12 months 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013 455 49 504

Balance at 1 April 2011 521 49 570 

Additions 0 0 0 

Disposals 0 0 0 

Loan repayments (44) 0 (44)

Revaluations 0 0 0 

Loans repayable within 12 months 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2012 477 49 526 

21.1  Other financial assets - Current

The PCT does not have any other current financial assets as at 31 March 2013.

21.2 Other Financial Assets - Non Current
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Opening balance 1 April 526 570

Additions 0 0

Revaluation 0 0

Impairments 0 0

Impairment Reversals 0 0

Transferred to current financial assets 0 0

Disposals (22) (44)

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies in year 0 0

Total Other Financial Assets - Non Current 504 526

21.3 Other Financial Assets - Capital Analysis

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Capital Expenditure 0 0 

Capital Income (22) 0 

22 Other current assets

The PCT does not have any other current assets as at 31 March 2013.

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Opening balance 6 0

Net change in year 177 6

Closing balance 183 6

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Service 183 3

Commercial banks 0 3

Cash in hand 0 0

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 183 6

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 183 6

Patients' money held by the PCT, not included above 0 0
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24  Non-current assets held for sale Land Buildings, 

excl. 

dwellings

Dwellings Asset Under 

Construction 

and 

Payments on 

Account

Plant and 

Machinery

Transport and 

Equipment

Information 

Technology

Furniture and 

Fittings

Intangible 

Assets

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 541 159 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 700

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets sold in the year (281) (119) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (400)

Less impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other 

than disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013 260 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Balance at 1 April 2011 2,419 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,219

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000

Less assets sold in the year (5,417) (1,531) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (6,948)

Less impairment of assets held for sale (461) (110) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (571)

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other 

than disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2012 541 159 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 700

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation reserve balances in respect of non-current assets held for sale were £000:

At 31 March 2012 1

At 31 March 2013 1

The assets sold in year relate to two buildings and their associated land.

These assets become available for sale following reviews by the Primary Care Trust. 

The sale of the remaining properties is being actively marketed and it is expected that these assets will be disposed of in the next financial year.

There was no gain or loss required to be recognised when assets were classified as held for resale.
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31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest payable 0 0

NHS payables - revenue 4,211 5,622 0 0

NHS payables - capital 0 8 0 0

NHS accruals and deferred income 0 110 0 0

Family Health Services (FHS) payables 12,798 11,315

Non-NHS payables - revenue 1,531 599 0 0

Non-NHS payables - capital 74 27 0 0

Non_NHS accruals and deferred income 4,828 5,754 0 0

Social security costs 82 0

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 96 0

Payments received on account 0 0 0 0

Other 806 9 0 0

Total 24,426 23,444 0 0

Total payables (current and non-current) 24,426 23,444

26 Other liabilities

The PCT does not have any other liabilities as at 31 March 2013.

27 Borrowings
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - commercial banks 0 0

PFI liabilities:

     Main liability 0 0 0 0

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

LIFT liabilities:

     Main liability 75 115 10,962 11,038

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

Finance lease liabilities 12 28 0 11

Other (describe) 0 0 0 0

Total 87 143 10,962 11,049

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 11,049 11,192

Borrowings/Loans - Payment of Principal Falling Due in:

DH Other Total

£000s £000s £000s

0 - 1 Years 87 0 87

1 - 2 Years 117 0 117

2 - 5 Years 282 0 282

Over 5 Years 10,563 0 10,563

TOTAL 11,049 0 11,049

25 Trade and other payables

Other payables include £0 (2011/12 £0) in respect of payments due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for 

early retirements over 5 instalments, and £528,806 (2011/12 £0) in respect of outstanding pensions contributions at 31st March

Current Non-current

Current Non-current
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28  Other financial liabilities

The PCT does not have any other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2013.

29  Deferred income
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at1 April 2012 110 0 0 0 

Deferred income addition 45 110 0 0 

Transfer of deferred income (110) 0 0 0 

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2013 45 110 0 0 

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 45 110 

30 Finance lease obligations
The PCT has a contractual lease obligation in respect of the Nottingham Nations Independent Treatment Centre (ISTC).

Nottingham PCT is the host PCT for the ISTC and, under IFRS, each PCT contracted to use the facility is obliged to 

Amounts payable under finance leases (Buildings)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 12 28 12 28 

Between one and five years 0 11 0 11 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges        0 0 

Present value of minimum lease payments 12 39 12 39 

Included in:

  Current borrowings 12 28 

  Non-current borrowings 0 11 

12 39 

Amounts payable under finance leases (Land)

There were no payments under finance leases (Land) during 2012/13.

Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)

There were no payments under finance leases (Other) during 2012/13.

Finance leases as lessee

There are no Future Sublease Payments  Expected to be received or Contingent Rent

31 Finance lease receivables as lessor

Amounts receivable under finance leases (buildings)

The PCT has no amounts receivable under finance leases (buildings) as at 31 March 2013.

Amounts receivable under finance leases (land)

The PCT has no amounts receivable under finance leases (land) as at 31 March 2013.

Amounts receivable under finance leases (other)

The PCT has no amounts receivable under finance leases (other) as at 31 March 2013.

Current Non-current

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease 

payments

capitalise a share of the asset and the attendant finance lease obligation. The lease runs for five years and will end in 2013/14. Under 

this arrangement any contingent rents, escalation clauses or other contractual conditions will be borne by the host PCT, NHS 

Nottingham City.
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32   Provisions Comprising:

Total

Pensions to 

Former 

Directors

Pensions 

Relating to 

Other Staff Legal Claims Restructuring

Continuing 

Care Equal Pay

Agenda for 

Change Other Redundancy

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 758 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 748 

Arising During the Year 3,344 0 0 0 0 2,994 0 0 0 350 

Utilised During the Year (387) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (387)

Reversed Unused (371) 0 0 (10) 0 0 0 0 0 (361)

Unwinding of Discount 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Change in Discount Rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Transferred (to)/from other Public Sector  bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2013 3,344 0 0 0 0 2,994 0 0 0 350 

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:

No Later than One Year 3,344 0 0 0 0 2,994 0 0 0 350 

Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Later than Five Years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation 

Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:

As at 31 March 2013 171 

As at 31 March 2012 280 

Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC):

The PCT is registered as an "Information Declarer" but not a "Participant" in the CRC Scheme, based on it's use of electricity in 2008. 

Only participants have a potential liability for costs so there is no provision in the PCT Accounts.

33 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

The PCT had no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2013.

The redundancy provision of 350K ia a contribution to the redundancy costs at Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust in respect of the transfer of the Freshstart Service to Derby City Council.

Following the publication, in February 2003, of a report by the Ombudsman on NHS funding for long term care the PCT has reviewed the criteria applied by the previous Southern Derbyshire Health Authority when 

assessing a patient's eligibility for NHS funded long term care.  The review has identified that the criteria were not in accordance with the law and therefore the PCT may be required to make repayments to patients who 

have paid for their own long term care. During the year the Department of Health widely advertised a final deadline in respect of claims for costs of Continuing Healthcare.  This resulted in a large increase in outstanding 

cases and as a result, in 2012/13 the PCT have accrued for £2,994K (2011/12 £0) as a Provision. 
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34  PFI and LIFT - additional information

The PCT has 3 lease plus arrangements with Southern Derbyshire LIFTco. 

The lease plus contract payments are increased each year by applying the February RPI index.

The lease plus contracts are for a 25 year period and terminate between 2031 - 2033

During the last 6 months of the lease, the PCT has the option to purchase the facilities at open market value less a potential discount,

the value of the discount depends on the open market value as at the date the option is exercised.

34.1 Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI

THE PCT had no PFI schemes as at 31 March 2013.

34.2 Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due

THE PCT had no PFI schemes as at 31 March 2013.

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of on and off SOFP LIFT 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Total Charge to Operating Expenses in year - OFF SOFP LIFT 0 0

Service element of on SOFP LIFT charged to operating expenses in year 273 230

Total 273 230

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP LIFT and the service element of on SOFP LIFT.

LIFT Scheme Expiry Date:

No Later than One Year 289 270 

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 1,216 1,169 

Later than Five Years 6,140 6,387 

Total 7,645 7,826 

The estimated annual payments in future years are expected to be materially different from those which the NHS 

Trust is committed to make during the next year.  The likely financial effect of this is: 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Estimated capital value of project - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

Value of Residual Interest - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP LIFT Contracts due 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

No Later than One Year 941 990 

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 3,790 3,795 

Later than Five Years 21,686 22,622 

Subtotal 26,417 27,407 

Less: Interest Element (15,380) (16,254)

Total 11,037 11,153 

35  Impact of IFRS treatment - 2012-13 Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g LIFT/PFI)

Depreciation charges 191 0 191 

Interest Expense 1,083 0 1,083 

Impairment charge - AME 0 0 

Impairment charge - DEL 0 0 0 

Other Expenditure 273 0 273 

Revenue Receivable from subleasing (304) 0 (304)

Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 1,243 0 1,243 

Revenue consequences of LIFT/PFI schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease income) 0 0 0 

Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 1,243 0 1,243 

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12

Capital expenditure 2012-13 0 

UK GAAP capital expenditure 2012-13 (Reversionary Interest) 0 

NHS LIFT schemes involve NHS bodies procuring the design, build, financing and operation of healthcare facilities from a private sector entity. A dedicated 

company is established for this purpose (a ‘LIFTco’) in which, typically, a private sector company holds a majority shareholding (normally 60%) with the 

remaining shareholding split between NHS bodies and Community Health Partnerships (an entity which is wholly owned by the Department of Health).

Under Leaseplus agreements, the LIFTco acquires the site and builds the facility but at the end of the contract the NHS body does not automatically 

acquire it. Instead, it frequently has an option to purchase the site and facility at a price linked to its fair value (the exact pricing arrangement is described 

later in the document). In some cases, the land may have been sold to the LIFTco by the NHS body prior to the start of the agreement

Under the provisions of The Health and Social Care Act 2012 ownership of any shareholding not held by Community Health partnerships transfers to  

them from 1st April 2013, including the shareholding held by Derby City PCT.
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36 Financial Instruments

Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

36.1 Financial Assets At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

receivables

Available for 

sale

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0

Receivables - NHS 1,382 1,382

Receivables - non-NHS 575 575

Cash at bank and in hand 183 183

Other financial assets 0 504 0 504

Total at 31 March 2013 0 2,644 0 2,644

Embedded derivatives 0 0

Receivables - NHS 1,932 1,932

Receivables - non-NHS 1,253 1,253

Cash at bank and in hand 6 6

Other financial assets 0 526 0 526

Total at 31 March 2012 0 3,717 0 3,717

36.2  Financial Liabilities At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Other Total 

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0

NHS payables 4,211 4,211

Non-NHS payables 19,886 19,886

Other borrowings 0 0

PFI & finance lease obligations 11,049 11,049

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 0 35,146 35,146

Embedded derivatives 0 0

NHS payables 5,630 5,630

Non-NHS payables 17,704 17,704

Other borrowings 0 0

PFI & finance lease obligations 11,192 11,192

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2012 0 34,526 34,526

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating 

or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  As the cash requirements of the PCT are met through Parliamentary 

Funding, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating risk that would apply to a non-public sector body of a similar size.  

The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts for non-financial items in line with the PCT’s expected purchase and usage 

requirements and the PCT is therefore exposed to little credit, liquidity or market list.

The PCT is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and 

Sterling based. The PCT has no overseas operations. The PCT therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

PCTs are not permitted to borrow.  The PCT therefore has low exposure to interest-rate fluctuations

Because the majority of the PCT’s income comes from funds voted by Parliament the PCT has low exposure to credit risk.

The PCT is required to operate within limits set by the Secretary of State for the financial year and draws down funds from the 

Department of Health as the requirement arises.  The PCT is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Page 40



Derby City Primary Care Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

37  Related party transactions
During the year 3 (2011/12 5) of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to

them have undertaken material related party transactions with Derby City Primary Care Trust .

Details of the related party transactions with these individuals are as follows:

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13

Name Related party Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£ £ £ £

Dr P Lacey GP Charnwood Surgery 1,523,544 0 33,053 0

Dr I Matthews GP Chapel St Surgery 1,385,568 0 24,247 0

Dr P Wood GP Park Farm Medical Surgery 1,243,513 0 23,122 0

Dr P Wood First Provider 143,360 0 0 0

Dr P Wood First Diabetes 155,396 0 0 0

2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12

Name Related party Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£ £ £ £

Dr P Lacey GP Charnwood Surgery 1,504,052 0 42,806 6,864

Dr I Matthews GP Chapel St Surgery 1,354,473 0 42,486 0

Dr P Wood GP Park Farm Medical Surgery 1,190,322 0 40,135 0

Dr B Bates GP Overdale Surgery 1,071,561 0 51,476 0

Dr S Khosla GP Charnwood Surgery 1,505,777 0 42,806 6,864

Dr P Wood First Provider 190,998 0 7,188 0

Dr P Wood First Diabetes 93,652 0 0 0

Dr B Bates First Provider 190,998 0 7,188 0

Dr B Bates First Diabetes 93,652 0 0 0

Derbyshire Health United (DHU) is regarded as a related party as they have provided GP Primary Care Out of Hours 

services on behalf of the PCT during the year. DHU is controlled by local GPs who may also undertake GP work on a 

sub-contract basis from time to time and who may also be a member of the PCT's Executive Committee. 

The value of payments made to DHU in 2012/13 was £4,578,351 (2011/12 £4,121,378).

Burton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust

Derbyshire County PCT 

Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust

Leicestershire County and Rutland Primary Care Trust

Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust

Nottingham City Primary Care Trust

Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust

Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust

NHS Business Services Authority

NHS East Midlands 

NHS Litigation Authority

Sheffield Children's NHS Foundation Trust

Sheffield Teaching NHS Foundation Trust

University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust

In addition, the Primary Care Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with other Government

Departments and other central and local Government bodies.  Most of these transactions have been with 

HM Revenue & Customs in respect of Income Tax, National Insurance and VAT.

Derby City and Derbyshire County Councils in respect of Joint Enterprises.

Prescription Pricing Authority in respect of Pharmaceutical Contractor payments.

The Primary Care Trust has not received any revenue or capital payments from any charitable funds of 

which the Trustees are also members of the Primary Care Trust Board.

All of the above transactions represent contract payments to GP practices and independent contractor organisations for the delivery of 

primary care services in which the above named members are partners or directors. Payments to GP practices are consistent with payments 

made to other practices in Derby and are made net of GP contributions to superannuation, courier service costs, clinical waste disposal and 

Local Medical Committee costs. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year Derby City Primary Care Trust has had a 

significant number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is 

regarded as the parent Department. These entities are listed below: 
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38 Losses and special payments

The total number of losses cases in 2012-13 and their total value was as follows:

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses - PCT management costs 0 0

Special payments - PCT management costs 70,000 1

Losses in respect of the provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Special payments in respect of the provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Total losses 0 0

Total special payments 70,000 1

Total losses and special payments 70,000 1

The total number of losses cases in 2011-12 and their  total value was as follows:

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses - PCT management costs 2,111 1

Special payments - PCT management costs 10,000 1

Losses in respect of the provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Special payments in respect of he provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Total losses 2,111 1

Total special payments 10,000 1

Total losses and special payments 12,111 2

39 Third party assets
Derby City PCT have no third party assets.

40 Children's Respite Centre pooled budget

Derby City PCT has a pooled budget arrangement with Derby City Council. The Council is the host. 

The PCT's share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year was:

2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12

Total Pooled 

Budget 

Derby City 

PCT share

Total Pooled 

Budget 

Derby City 

PCT share

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income 
1,969 971 1,949 971

Expenditure -
  Residential services 1,078 662 1,078 662

  Outreach service 327 104 327 104

  Fieldwork teams 5 0 5 0

  Administration 559 205 539 205

Total 1969 971 1,949 971

Balance carried forward 0 0 0 0

Included in the income and expenditure account is £971,334 of expenditure (£971,334 in 2011/12).

41 Cashflows relating to exceptional items
There are no cashflows relating to exceptional items to report for the PCT.

42.1 Events after the end of the reporting period - PCT Closure and Succession

Derby City Council and Public Health England will take over the Public Health commissioning responsibilities.

All of NHS Derby City's share of any under spend arising on the pool is carried forward in the accounts of Derby City 

Council.

The PCT closed on the 31st March 2013. Under the provisions of The Health and Social Care Act 2012 the PCT’s 

functions, assets and liabilities transferred to the following public sector entities:

 Southern Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group and the National Commissioning Board will take over the bulk of the 

PCT's commissioning responsibilities; and
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CLUSTER BOARD 2012/13

Attendee Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan '13 Feb '13 March '13

George Tansley, NED              

Brian Walsh, NED              

Mark Todd, Chair              

Pauline Ambrey, NED              

Ian Forrest, NED              

Ian Gibbard, NED              

Paul Devlin, NED              

Alison McKinna, NED - left 31/8/12       

David Black, Medical Director        

Maggie Boyd, Director of Nursing        

Andy Leary, Director of Finance        

Ian Matthews, Snr Clinical Advisor              

Georgina McLennan, Assoc D of Corp Gov              

Karen Rhodes, Assoc D of HR              

David Sharp, Chief Exec        

Phil DaSilva, D of Comms Deve until 15/12/12           

Trish Thompson, D of External Rels        

Derek Ward, DPH City              

Martin Whittle, D of Assurance              

Bruce Laurence, DPH County            

Derek Bray, Chief Exec from 1/10/12      

Helen Pledger, Director of Finance 1/10/12      

Vikki Taylor, Director of Commissioning 1/10/12      

Doug Black, Medical Director 1/10/12      

Barbara Stuttle, Nurse Director 1/11/12     

Julie Bolus, Nurse Director 1/12/12   

Elaine Michel, DPH County 6/2/13  

Combined DPH Attendance              
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Cluster Board 2012/13

Strategic Items 

Strategic Reports 

Transformation / System Reform

Psychodynamic Therapies Consultation

Derbyshire County Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Derbyshire System Integrated Plan

Midlands & East Strategic Health Authority Ambitions

Clinical Commissioning Group Authorisation Timetable and Process 

Cluster Governance in Transition

Scheme of Delegation for the Establishment of an Interim CSO Board 

Clinical Commissioning for Ambulance Services 

Public Sector Equality Duty - Safe and Sustainable

East Midlands Specialised Commissioning Group - Objectives 2012/13 

Offender Health Commissioning Update Report

Consultation on the Draft Derbyshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012

Maintaining Quality During the Transition Preparing for Handover

Quality in Transition x 2

Derbyshire Approach to Quality Impact Assessments (QIAs)

Update on the Reprovision of Maternity Services 

Making Every Contact Count (MECC)

Derbyshire Locked/Unlocked Rehabilitation Services for People with a Learning Disability

Winterbourne Report

Derby City Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Clinical Commissioning Group Authorisation Progress Update (monthly until Dec 12)

Cluster Governance Update 2012/13

Derbyshire Cluster Carbon Management Report

Friends and Family Test Update

Offender Health Commissioning Update Report

PCT Legacy Document Update

Seasonal Influenza Briefing

Accountable Officer Transition Arrangements

Third Sector/Section 28s

Derbyshire Winter Plan 2012/13

Cluster Accountabilities During Transition

Never Events Reporting Structure

Francis Report Potential Implications

Transition Documentation Feedback

xv
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Patient Story

September - Dignity in Care

November - Complex Needs/Access

January - Careers/Dementia

Human Resources

Organisational Development Framework Update (monthly standing Item)

Other Matters

Establishment Agreement for Midlands and East Specialised Commissioning Group

The Big Conversation about the Quality of Nursing Care across Derby City and Derbyshire

Contracts Position Update 2012/13

Audit Committee Annual Report

Quality Accounts

Derbyshire Cluster Annual Accountability Review

Managing Quality in Transition and Quality in the New Health System 

Annual Report 2011/12

Responsible Officer

NHS Complaint Handling Transition

Savile Allegations

Quality Improvement Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) Update

xvi
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for year ended

31 March 2013
2012-13 2011-12

NOTE £000 £000

Administration Costs and Programme Expenditure

Gross employee benefits 7.1 15,491 18,769

Other costs 5.1 1,235,497 1,194,567

Income 4 (43,243) (40,581)

Net operating costs before interest 1,207,745 1,172,755

Investment income 9 (741) (938)

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 0 (229)

Finance costs 11 3,651 3,607

Net operating costs for the financial year 1,210,655 1,175,195

Transfers by absorption -(gains) 0

Transfers by absorption - losses 0

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 0

Net Operating Costs for the Financial Year including absorption transfers 1,210,655 1,175,195

Of which:

Administration Costs

Gross employee benefits 7.1 11,286 10,897

Other costs 5.1 10,280 10,514

Income 4 (2,239) (1,710)

Net administration costs before interest 19,327 19,701

Investment income 9 0 0

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 0 0

Finance costs 11 0 10

Net administration costs for the financial year 19,327 19,711

Programme Expenditure

Gross employee benefits 7.1 4,205 7,872

Other costs 5.1 1,225,217 1,184,053

Income 4 (41,004) (38,871)

Net programme expenditure before interest 1,188,418 1,153,054

Investment income 9 (741) (938)

Other (Gains)/Losses 10 0 (229)

Finance costs 11 3,651 3,597

Net programme expenditure for the financial year 1,191,328 1,155,484

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals put to the Revaluation Reserve 14 315 732

Net (gain) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 12.1 (3,022) (7,136)

Net (gain) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0

Net (gain) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on other reserves 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on available for sale financial assets 0 0

Net (gain) /loss on Assets Held for Sale 0

Release of Reserves to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0

Net actuarial (gain)/loss on pension schemes 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 1,207,948 1,168,791

Notes 1 to 42 form part of this account.

SOCNE P
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Statement of Financial Position at

31 March 2013
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

NOTE £000 £000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 12 139,497 141,611

Intangible assets 13 51 77

investment property 15 0 0

Other financial assets 36.1 774 789

Trade and other receivables 19 10,409 10,504

Total non-current assets 150,731 152,981

Current assets:

Inventories 18 0 0

Trade and other receivables 19 6,061 16,746

Other financial assets 21 0 0

Other current assets 22 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 23 992 4

Total current assets 7,053 16,750

Non-current assets held for sale 24 1,000 1,757

Total current assets 8,053 18,507

Total assets 158,784 171,488

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 (54,871) (51,247)

Other liabilities 26,28 0 0

Provisions 32 (2,574) (2,592)

Borrowings 27 (831) (1,053)

Other financial liabilities 36.2 0 0

Total current liabilities (58,276) (54,892)

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities 100,508 116,596

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 0 0

Other Liabilities 26,28 0 0

Provisions 32 (11,127) (5,079)

Borrowings 27 (44,589) (45,420)

Other financial liabilities 36.2 0 0

Total non-current liabilities (55,716) (50,499)

Total Assets Employed: 44,792 66,097

Financed by taxpayers' equity:

General fund 19,110 35,187

Revaluation reserve 25,682 30,910

Other reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity: 44,792 66,097

      

Notes 1 to 42 form part of this account.

Designated Signing Officer: Date:

The financial statements were approved by the Audit Committee on 6th June 2013 and signed on its behalf by
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2013
General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 35,187 30,910 0 66,097
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2012-13

Net operating cost for the year (1,210,655) 0 0 (1,210,655)

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 3,022 0 3,022

Net gain on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 (315) 0 (315)

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 7,935 (7,935) 0 0

Release of Reserves to SOCNE 0 0 0 0
Reclassification Adjustments 0 0 0 0

Transfers between Revaluation Reserve & General Fund in respect of 

assets transferred under absorption

0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0
Total recognised income and expense for 2012-13 (1,202,720) (5,228) 0 (1,207,948)

Net Parliamentary funding 1,186,643 0 0 1,186,643
Balance at 31 March 2013 19,110 25,682 0 44,792

Balance at 1 April 2011 8,616 25,143 0 33,759
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12 0 0 0 0

Net operating cost for the year (1,175,195) 0 0 (1,175,195)

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 0 7,136 0 7,136

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Intangible Assets 0 0 0 0

Net Gain / (loss) on Revaluation of Financial Assets 0 0 0 0

Net Gain / (loss) on Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and Reversals 0 (732) 0 (732)

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 637 (637) 0 0

Release of Reserves to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments 0 0 0 0

Transfers to/(from) Other Bodies within the Resource Account Boundary 0 0 0 0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Total recognised income and expense for 2011-12 (1,174,558) 5,767 0 (1,168,791)

Net Parliamentary funding 1,201,129 0 0 1,201,129

Balance at 31 March 2012 35,187 30,910 0 66,097

There was a movement of £7,935,000 from the Revaluation Reserve to General Fund.

£6,573,000 relates to a correction of historical balances.

£870,000 relates to the additional depreciation on assets which have been revalued upwards.

£493,000 relates to assets which have been reclassified as held for sale and sold.
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended

31 March 2013
2012-13 2011-12

NOTE £000 £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Operating Cost Before Interest SOCNE (1,207,745) (1,172,755)

Depreciation and Amortisation 12.1 & 13.1 5,373 4,781

Impairments and Reversals 12 644 227

Other Gains / (Losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest Paid (3,532) (3,450)

Release of PFI/deferred credit 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 0 118

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables SOFP 10,780 (7,313)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 0 0

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables SOFP 6,609 (26,075)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities 0 0

Provisions Utilised 32 (1,391) (941)

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 32 7,302 2,277

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (1,181,960) (1,203,131)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest Received 94 128

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment 12 (4,781) (365)

(Payments) for Intangible Assets 0 0

(Payments) for Other Financial Assets 0 0

(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT) (1,053) (1,019)

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 1,383 478

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible) 0 0

Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets 0 0

Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0

Loans Made in Respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT 15 100

Rental Revenue 647 810

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (3,695) 132

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing (1,185,655) (1,202,999)

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SoFP PFI and LIFT 0 0

Net Parliamentary Funding 1,186,643 1,201,129

Capital Receipts Surrendered 0 0

Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 0

Cash Transferred (to)/from Other NHS Bodies (free text note required) 0 0

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities 1,186,643 1,201,129

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 988 (1,870)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ( and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period 4 5

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign Currencies 0 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end * 992 (1,865)

2011-12

The 2011-12 TCS adjustments were as follows: £000

Cash and Cash Equivalent total from 2011-12 above (1,865)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (118)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (3,653)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 5,640

Actual closing Cash and Cash Equivalents total as at 31st March 2012 4

* The prior year figures above do not include the transfer of Current Asset and Liabilities relating to TCS (Transforming Community Services).

SCF P
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1. Accounting policies

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of PCTs shall meet the accounting requirements of 

the PCT Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury.  Consequently, the following financial statements have 

been prepared in accordance with the 2012-13 PCT Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health.  The accounting 

policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful 

and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where 

the PCT Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate 

to the particular circumstances of the PCT for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular 

policies adopted by the PCT are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material 

in relation to the accounts.

The PCT is within the Government Resource Accounting Boundary and therefore has only consolidated interests in other entities 

where the other entity is also within the resource accounting boundary and the PCT exercises in-year budgetary control over the 

other entity.

In accordance with the directed accounting policy from the Secretary of State, the PCT does not consolidate the NHS charitable 

funds for which it is the corporate trustee.

1.1    Accounting Conventions

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities

Transforming Community Services (TCS) transactions

Under the TCS initiative, services historically provided by PCTs have transferred to other providers - notably NHS Trusts and 

NHS Foundation Trusts.  Such transfers fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury FReM.  

The FReM does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger 

accounting) have not been restated.  Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in 

which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where 

assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the SOCNE, and is disclosed separately from operating 

costs.

Going Concern

Under the provisions of The Health and Social Care Act 2012 (Commencement No.4. Transitional, Savings and Transitory 

Provisions) Order 2013, Derbyshire CountyPCT was dissolved on 1
st
 April 2013.  The PCT’s functions, assets and liabilities 

transferred to other public sector entities as outlined in Note 42 Events after the Reporting Period.  Where reconfigurations of this 

nature take place within the public sector, Government accounting requires that the activities concerned are to be considered as 

continuing operations, and so the closing entity prepares accounts on a “going concern” basis.

The SOFP has therefore been drawn up at 31 March 2013 on the same basis as in previous years, reporting balances on the 

same basis as would a continuing entity.  In particular, there has been no general revaluation of assets or liabilities, and no 

general disclosures have been made under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation.

Although revaluations and impairments have been recognised in the period these have been routine within the annual cycle of 

activity and are not considered to be material.

Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be 'acquired' only if they are acquired from outside the public sector.  Activities are considered to be 

'discontinued' only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to be 'discontinued' if they transfer from one NHS body to 

another. 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the PCT’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and 

associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 

may differ from those estimates.  The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 

the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Note 1



Critical  judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the 

process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 

financial statements.

The LIFT (Local Improvement Finance Trust) lease plus contracts relate to the lease of healthcare facilities along with the 

provision of various services . The PCT has determined that this contract should be considered as an IFRIC 12 service 

concession, since the contract is for the provision of services, which are controlled by the PCT, in relation to an infrastructure 

asset. The PCT also has a significant interest in the residual value of the asset, via an option to buy the facilities in the last 6 

months of the contract.

The PCT considers that it is reasonably likely that this option will be exercised, and therefore has recorded the finance option 

price of the building as a bullet lease payment. Consequently the assets are being depreciated over a normal useful life of 

approximately 57 years, rather than the lease term.

If in the future the PCT decides not to exercise this option, then the final bullet payment will never become payable, and the 

assets will have to be depreciated over the lease term. This will result in a material restatement of the PCT financial statements. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key sources of estimation uncertainty within the accounts are deemed to be in relation to the valuation of assets, the 

assessment of asset lives and the calculation of the provision for Continuing Healthcare. The relevant notes to the accounts are 

Note 12.3 and Note 32.

The PCT has mitigated the risks resulting from these estimation uncertainties by using previous knowledge and experience and 

seeking professional advice as appropriate. On this basis there are no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 

sources of estimation uncertainty at the Statement of Financial Position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Note 1
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.2    Revenue and Funding

The main source of funding for the Primary Care Trust is allocations (Parliamentary Funding) from the Department of Health 

within an approved cash limit, which is credited to the General Fund of the Primary Care Trust.  Parliamentary funding is 

recognised in the financial period in which the cash is received.

Miscellaneous revenue is income which relates directly to the operating activities of the Primary Care Trust.  It principally 

comprises fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers, as well as public repayment work.  It 

includes both income appropriated-in-aid of the Vote and income to the Consolidated Fund which HM Treasury has agreed 

should be treated as operating income. 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the 

fair value of the consideration receivable.

Where revenue has been received for a specific activity to be delivered in the following financial year, that income will be 

deferred.

1.3    Pooled budgets 

The PCT has entered into a pooled budget with Derbyshire County Council.  Under the arrangement funds are pooled under S75 

of the NHS Act 2006 for integrated care activity and equipment and a memorandum note to the accounts provides details of the 

joint income and expenditure.  

The pool is hosted by Derbyshire County Council.  As a commissioner of healthcare services, the PCT makes contributions to the 

pool, which are then used to purchase healthcare services and equipment.  The PCT accounts for its share of the assets, 

liabilities, income and expenditure of the pool as determined by the pooled budget agreement.

1.4   Taxation

The PCT is not liable to pay corporation tax.  Expenditure is shown net of recoverable VAT.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the 

most appropriate expenditure heading or capitalised if it relates to an asset.

1.5   Administration and Programme Costs

Treasury has set performance targets in respect of non-frontline expenditure (administration expenditure).

PCTs therefore analyse and report revenue income and expenditure by "admin and programme"

For PCTs, the Department has defined "admin and programme" in terms of running costs.

The broad definition of running costs includes any cost incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or 

healthcare related services. Expense incurred under NHS transition redundancy programmes is however classed as 

"programme" under Treasury budgetary control arrrangements and so is recorded as such in the financial statements.

Note 1 cont1
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Property, Plant & Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the PCT;

● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets 

are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal 

dates and are under single managerial control; or

● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or 

collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the 

components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or 

constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the PCT's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at 

their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 

different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows:

   ● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

   ● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been estimated for an exact replacement of 

the asset in its present location.  HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations 

based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an 

alternative site can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss.  Cost 

includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for 

assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed by indexation and  depreciation of 

historic cost.  From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased.  The carrying value of existing assets at that date will be written off over 

their remaining useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be 

materially different from fair value. 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset 

previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged 

there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an 

impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 

expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains 

and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive net expenditure in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised.  

Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing 

carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

Note 1 cont2
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Intangible Assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the 

PCT’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the PCT; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, 

and where the cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, 

for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not 

integral to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on 

research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated 

assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use

● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it

● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset

● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential

● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it

● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date 

when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is 

recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at amortised historic cost as the intangible asset values are sufficiently 

low and their lives sufficiently short that this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

1.8 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and 

intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption 

of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the PCT 

expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset.  This is specific to the PCT and may be shorter than the 

physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any 

changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

At each reporting period end, the PCT checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current 

assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are 

tested for impairment annually.  

 A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment 

charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 

expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure.  Where 

an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the 

recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The 

reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to 

the revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) from 2011-

12.  This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and 

Departments may not exceed the limits that they have been set. AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with 

departments in the run-up to the Budget. Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME 

spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean departments do 

not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial year, any expected increases in AME require 

Treasury approval.

Note 1 cont3
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Donated assets
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset reserve is no longer 

maintained.  Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to Income. They are 

valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and 

sales are as described above for purchased assets.  Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 

donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.10 Government grants 

Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a government grant reserve is no longer 

maintained.  The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to income.  Deferred income is 

recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.11 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 

rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for 

immediate sale in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as 

a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of 

their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.  On disposal, the balance for the asset in the revaluation 

reserve is transferred to retained earnings. 

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is 

retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or 

demolished.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula.  This is considered to 

be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  

Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 

known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and 

that form an integral part of the PCT’s cash management.

1.14 Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service 

or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control 

procedures compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which govern the way each 

individual case is handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings including losses which would have been made 

good through insurance cover had PCTs not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as 

normal revenue expenditure).  

1.15 Clinical Negligence Costs

From 1 April 2000, the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) took over the full financial responsibility for all Existing Liabilities 

Scheme (ELS) cases unsettled at that date and from 1 April 2002 all Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) cases. 

Provisions for these are included in the accounts of the NHSLA. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all cases 

from 1 April 2000, the legal liability remains with the PCTs.

The NHSLA operates a risk pooling scheme under which the PCT pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return 

settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure in the year that it is due.  The total value of 

clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the PCT is disclosed at Note 32.

Note 1 cont4
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. 

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the 

extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

Retirement benefit costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an unfunded, defined 

benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of 

State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share 

of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 

scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 

the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 

amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the PCT commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment.

1.17 Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred. The PCT does not 

undertake any research or development activities which would meet the criteria for capitalisation.

1.18 Other expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are 

measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.19 Partially Completed Spells

Where a service provider can demonstrate that it is certain to receive income for a treatment or spell once a patient is admitted 

and treatment begins, the PCT will recognise expenditure for that treatment or spell from that point. Expenditure relating to those 

spells that are part-completed at the year-end is apportioned across financial years as notified by the service provider. 

1.20 Grant making
Under section 256 of the National Health Service Act 2006, the PCT has the power to make grants to local authorities, voluntary 

bodies and registered social landlords to finance capital or revenue schemes.  A liability in respect of these grants is recognised 

when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment 

have been met.

1.21 EU Emissions Trading Scheme

EU Emission Trading Scheme allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not 

expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets.  The PCT does not carry any allowances as 

assets.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.22 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the PCT, or a present 

obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of 

the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is 

remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed 

where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.23 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee.  All 

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The PCT as lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if 

lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease 

payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on 

interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the PCT’s net operating cost.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease incentives are 

recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether 

they are operating or finance leases.

The PCT as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the PCT’s net investment in the 

leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the PCT’s 

net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial direct costs incurred 

in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

1.24 Foreign exchange

Transactions which are denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the date of 

each transaction, except where rates do not fluctuate significantly, in which case an average rate for a period is used. Resulting 

exchange gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

1.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that the PCT will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  The 

amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 

settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% (2.8% 

in respect of early staff departures) in real terms.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 

receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable 

can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision.  An onerous contract is 

considered to exist where the PCT has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 

exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the PCT has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a 

valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main 

features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from 

the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing 

activities of the entity.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.26 Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the PCT becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights 

have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’; ‘held to maturity 

investments’; ‘available for sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and 

purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. The PCT's financial assets are included under 

the "available for sale" and "loans and receivables" categories.

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or that do not fall 

within any of the other three financial asset classifications.  They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the 

revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses.  Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure on de-recognition. These assets are held at historic cost and reviewed for impairment.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active 

market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques. The PCT 

considers that the fair values of financial assets and liabilities are materially the same as the carrying value, so no valuations 

have been undertaken.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 

financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the PCT assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 

through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has 

an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 

rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 

directly, or through a provision for impairment of receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of 

Comprehensive Net Expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed 

does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the PCT becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial 

liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or other financial liabilities. All of 

the PCT's financial liabilities are included under the "other" category.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net 

carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

1.27 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and NHS LIFT transactions

HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes (including NHS LIFT) where 

the government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the 

arrangement as service concession arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The PCT therefore 

recognises the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received 

under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where 

necessary:

a)       Payment for the fair value of services received;

b)       Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and

c)       Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

a) Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.

b) LIFT assets, liabilities, and finance costs

LIFT assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair 

value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date 

in accordance with the PCT’s approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

A LIFT liability is recognised at the same time as the LIFT assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the fair value of the 

LIFT assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

Note 1 cont8
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, 

and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost 

and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance 

with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is 

expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a 

contingent finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

c) Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet 

the PCT’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured 

initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from 

the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than 

expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised 

as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the 

difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the 

operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the PCT to the operator for use in the scheme

Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the PCT’s 

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Other assets contributed by the PCT to the operator

Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the PCT to the operator before the asset is brought into use, which 

are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the 

contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the PCT, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the 

finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

1.28  Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2012-13. The application of the 

Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2012-13, were they applied in that year:

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - subject to consultation

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation  - subject to consultation

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  - subject to consultation

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  - subject to consultation

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation

IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation

Note 1 cont9
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2 Operating segments

North 

Derbyshire 

CCG

Southern 

Derbyshire 

CCG

Hardwick 

CCG

Erewash 

CCG

National 

Commissioning 

Board

Other PCT TOTAL PCT TOTAL

2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure 378,527 278,101 139,334 117,293 299,768 37,963 1,250,986 1,213,336

Net Operating Costs

Segment net operating costs 375,694 276,452 138,550 116,208 274,573 29,178 1,210,655 1,175,195

Common costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Net Operating Costs 375,694 276,452 138,550 116,208 274,573 29,178 1,210,655 1,175,195

Net Assets:

Segment net assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 44,792 66,097

Expenditure with other NHS bodies exceeds 10% of expenditure. A list of NHS and other local and central government bodies with which the PCT has significant values of transactions is given in Note 37 to the 

accounts.

The PCT has applied the Accounting Standard IFRS8 - Operating Segments and deemed that a segment will be reported if the net expenditure exceeds 10% of the PCTs total expenditure. 

In April 2012 the PCT restructured its ledger so that PCT successor bodies could report in shadow format for a full year prior to succeeding the PCT. 

During the year the PCT has reported to its Board a financial position split down by Clinical Commissioning Group, Public Health, National Commissioning Board, Property Services and Commissioning Support 

Unit. Not all the PCT successor elements are reported as a segment as their expenditure total falls below the 10% threshold. Where this is the case they will be consolidated and reported as 'Other'. Erewash 

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) falls just below the 10% threshold, however, for completeness the Erewash CCG figures are reported so that readers of the Accounts can see the four Clinical Commissioning 

Groups that will take over from the PCT

PCT successor Bodies were not reported in 2011-12. Therefore prior year comparators are not available.

Net assets have not been apportioned by PCT successor bodies during the year. These have been under common PCT control so will not be reported seperately.

Note 2 P
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3. Financial Performance Targets

3.1  Revenue Resource Limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

 The PCTs' performance for the year ended 2012-13 is as follows:

Total Net Operating Cost for the Financial Year 1,210,655 1,175,195

Net operating cost plus (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 0 0

Adjusted for prior period adjustments in respect of errors 0 0

Revenue Resource Limit 1,223,062 1,183,223

Under/(Over)spend Against Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) 12,407 8,028

3.2 Capital Resource Limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

The PCT is required to keep within its Capital Resource Limit.

Capital Resource Limit 1,174 2,031 

Charge to Capital Resource Limit 413 2,031 
(Over)/Underspend Against CRL 761 0 

In addition to the reported Capital Resource Limit the PCT also received capital receipts of £1,383,000. See Note 24.

3.3 Under/(Over)spend against cash limit 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Total Charge to Cash Limit 1,186,643 1,201,129

Cash Limit 1,203,143 1,202,129

Under/(Over)spend Against Cash Limit 16,500 1,000

3.4 Reconciliation of Cash Drawings to Parliamentary Funding (current year) 2012-13

£000

Total cash received from DH (Gross) 1,040,313 

Less: Trade Income from DH 0 

Less/(Plus): movement in DH working balances 0 

Sub total: net advances 1,040,313 

(Less)/plus: transfers (to)/from other resource account bodies  (free text note required) 0 

Plus: cost of Dentistry Schemes (central charge to cash limits) 26,593 

Plus: drugs reimbursement (central charge to cash limits) 119,737 

Parliamentary funding credited to General Fund 1,186,643 

Note 3P
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4 Miscellaneous Revenue
2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fees and Charges 7 0 7 0

Dental Charge income from Contractor-Led GDS & PDS 9,627 0 9,627 9,370

Dental Charge income from Trust-Led GDS & PDS 0 0 0 0

Prescription Charge income 7,355 0 7,355 5,826

Strategic Health Authorities 119 93 26 63

NHS Trusts 978 928 50 536

NHS Foundation Trusts 813 79 734 700

Primary Care Trusts Contributions to DATs 0 0 0 0

Primary Care Trusts - Other 4,231 324 3,907 3,679

Primary Care Trusts - Lead Commissioning 0 0 0 62

English RAB Special Health Authorities 20 0 20 0

NDPBs and Others (CGA) 111 20 91 0

Department of Health - SMPTB 0 0 0 0

Department of Health - Other 43 43 0 53

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 566 501 65 448

Local Authorities 1,554 71 1,483 2,395

Patient Transport Services 0 0 0 0

Education, Training and Research 5,316 0 5,316 4,818

Non-NHS: Private Patients 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS: Overseas Patients (Non-Reciprocal) 0 0 0 0

NHS Injury Costs Recovery 0 0 0 0

Other Non-NHS Patient Care Services 0 0 0 0

Charitable and Other Contributions to Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Receipt of donated assets 0 0 0 6

Receipt of Government granted assets 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from finance leases 50 0 50 25

Rental revenue from operating leases 12,080 48 12,032 11,747

Other revenue 373 132 241 853

Total miscellaneous revenue 43,243 2,239 41,004 40,581

Note 4 P
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5. Operating Costs

5.1 Analysis of operating costs: 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Goods and Services from Other PCTs

Healthcare 101,206 0 101,206 95,697

Non-Healthcare 1,576 1,426 150 1,928
Total 102,782 1,426 101,356 97,625

Goods and Services from Other NHS Bodies other than FTs

Goods and services from NHS Trusts 217,641 849 216,792 215,398

Goods and services (other, excl Trusts, FT and PCT)) 369 142 227 443
Total 218,010 991 217,019 215,841

Goods and Services from Foundation Trusts 477,001 504 476,497 465,038

Purchase of Healthcare from Non-NHS bodies 119,858 0 119,858 107,305

Social Care from Independent Providers 0 0 0 341

Expenditure on Drugs Action Teams 816 0 816 1,408

Non-GMS Services from GPs 588 0 588 621

Contractor Led GDS & PDS (excluding employee benefits) 37,336 0 37,336 36,244

Salaried Trust-Led PDS & PCT DS (excluding employee benefits) 0 0 0 0

Chair, Non-executive Directors & PEC remuneration 63 63 0 74

Executive committee members costs 3 3 0 0

Consultancy Services 910 795 115 509

Prescribing Costs 101,362 0 101,362 105,232

G/PMS, APMS and PCTMS (excluding employee benefits) 109,743 0 109,743 105,706

Pharmaceutical Services 910 0 910 1,018

Local Pharmaceutical Services Pilots 0 0 0 0

New Pharmacy Contract 33,894 0 33,894 29,371

General Ophthalmic Services 6,498 0 6,498 6,044

Supplies and Services - Clinical 531 3 528 325

Supplies and Services - General 39 33 6 6

Establishment 1,722 1,290 432 2,488

Transport 91 62 29 134

Premises 1,990 758 1,232 2,754

Impairments & Reversals of Property, plant and equipment 644 0 644 227

Impairments and Reversals of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Depreciation 5,347 399 4,948 4,755

Amortisation 26 13 13 26

Impairment & Reversals Intangible non-current assets 0 0 0 0

Impairment and Reversals of Financial Assets 0 0 0 0

Impairment of Receivables (7) 0 (7) 7

Inventory write offs 0 0 0 0

Research and Development Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Audit Fees 158 158 0 245

Other Auditors Remuneration 12 12 0 36

Clinical Negligence Costs 28 0 28 0

Education and Training 5,945 207 5,738 5,258

Grants for capital purposes 1,579 0 1,579 25

Grants for revenue purposes 3,629 0 3,629 3,376

Impairments and reversals for investment properties 0 0 0 0

Other 3,989 3,563 426 2,528

Total Operating costs charged to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 1,235,497 10,280 1,225,217 1,194,567

Employee Benefits (excluding capitalised costs)

Employee Benefits associated with PCTMS 0 0 0 0

Trust led PDS and PCT DS 0 0 0 0

PCT Officer Board Members 826 826 0 1,001

Other Employee Benefits 14,665 10,460 4,205 17,768

Total Employee Benefits charged to SOCNE 15,491 11,286 4,205 18,769

Total Operating Costs 1,250,988 21,566 1,229,422 1,213,336

Analysis of grants reported in total operating costs

For capital purposes

Grants to fund Capital Projects - GMS 1,215 0 1,215 0 

Grants to Local Authorities to Fund Capital Projects 0 0 0 25 

Grants to Private Sector to Fund Capital Projects 364 0 364 0 

Grants to Fund Capital Projects - Dental 0 0 0 0 

Grants to Fund Capital Projects - Other 0 0 0 0 

Total Capital Grants 1,579 0 1,579 25 

Grants to fund revenue expenditure

To Local Authorities 403 0 403 502 

To Private Sector 3,226 0 3,226 2,874 

To Other 0 0 0 0 

Total Revenue Grants 3,629 0 3,629 3,376 

Total Grants 5,208 0 5,208 3,401 

Total Commissioning Public Health

Services

PCT Running Costs 2012-13

Running costs (£000s) 19,327 14,438 4,889

Weighted population (number in units)* 726,424 726,424 726,424

Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 26.61 19.88 6.73

PCT Running Costs 2011-12

Running costs (£000s) 19,711 15,045 4,666 

Weighted population (number in units) 726,424 726,424 726,424 

Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 27.13 20.71 6.42

* Weighted population figures are not available for 2012-13 as the weighted capitation formula for PCT allocations was not updated for 2012-13. 2011-12 weighted 

populations have therefore been used to calculate the Running Costs per head of population in 2012-13.

Note 5.1 P
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2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Purchase of Primary Health Care

GMS / PMS/ APMS / PCTMS 109,743 105,706

Prescribing costs 101,362 105,232

Contractor led GDS & PDS 37,336 36,244

Trust led GDS & PDS 0 0

General Ophthalmic Services 6,498 6,044

Department of Health Initiative Funding 0 0

Pharmaceutical services 910 1,018

Local Pharmaceutical Services Pilots 0 0

New Pharmacy Contract 33,894 29,371

Non-GMS Services from GPs 588 621

Other 0 0

Total Primary Healthcare purchased 290,331 284,236

Purchase of Secondary Healthcare

Learning Difficulties 23,130 21,648

Mental Illness 88,213 87,361

Maternity 22,168 24,185

General and Acute 541,077 505,635

Accident and emergency 35,636 36,756

Community Health Services 181,519 170,728

Other Contractual 18,636 34,942

Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 910,379 881,255

Grant Funding

Grants for capital purposes 1,579 25 

Grants for revenue purposes 3,629 3,376 

Total Healthcare Purchased by PCT 1,205,918 1,168,892 

PCT self-provided secondary healthcare included above 0 0 

Social Care from Independent Providers 0 341 

Healthcare from NHS FTs included above 475,542 464,321 

5.2 Analysis of operating expenditure by expenditure 

classification

Note 5.2 P
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6. Operating Leases

The costs set out below are for payments on leased cars, buildings and land.

 - IAS 17 Leases

2012-13 2011-12

6.1 PCT as lessee Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 257 1,101

Contingent rents 0 0

Sub-lease payments 70 70
Total 327 1,171

Payable:

No later than one year 0 146 33 179 588

Between one and five years 0 195 66 261 1,423

After five years 0 576 0 576 1,090
Total 0 917 99 1,016 3,101

Total future sublease payments expected to be received 117 186

6.2 PCT as lessor

2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Recognised as income

Rental Revenue 11,432 11,244

Contingent rents 648 503
Total 12,080 11,747

Receivable:

No later than one year 12,168 11,830

Between one and five years 6,033 5,832

After five years 30,585 30,690
Total 48,786 48,352

The comparable value for 2011-12 was £8,759,033.

The arrangements for Derbyshire Community Health Services (DCHS) to lease properties, including LIFT properties, are accounted for as 

operating leases in 2012-13.  Only 1 year's worth of receivable is recognised below, on the basis that the service contract with DCHS is an 

annual rolling contract.  However, it is anticipated that, in respect of the LIFT properties, these will continue to be occupied by a service 

provider and the PCT will continue to receive income in order to pay for the long term payable shown in Note 34.3 and 34.4 in this respect.

Derbyshire County PCT receives rental income from the lease of health buildings.

The terms of these leases are standard operating lease terms, with no obligation or incentive to purchase at the end of the lease period.

Some lease agreements are linked to the Retails Price Index (RPI).  Those increases in lease income due to RPI are classified as 

contingent rents.

The terms are standard operating lease terms, with no obligation or incentive to purchase at the end of the lease period and no contingent 

rents.

Derbyshire County PCT also has financial arrangements involving the use of GP premises.  After consideration of:

 - SIC 27 Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease

 - IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

the PCT determined that operating leases must be recognised.  But, as there is no defined term in the arrangements entered into, it is not 

possible to analyse the arrangement over financial years.

The financial value included in the Operating Costs Statement for 2012-13 is £8,840,432

Note 6 P
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7. Employee benefits and staff numbers

7.1 Employee benefits 2012-13

Permanently employed Other

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure

Salaries and wages 12,728 9,218 3,510 12,224 8,714 3,510 504 504 0

Social security costs 1,067 777 290 1,026 736 290 41 41 0

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 1,553 1,148 405 1,490 1,085 405 63 63 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 143 143 0 143 143 0 0 0 0

Total employee benefits 15,491 11,286 4,205 14,883 10,678 4,205 608 608 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (table below) (566) (501) (65) (566) (501) (65) 0 0 0

Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 14,925 10,785 4,140 14,317 10,177 4,140 608 608 0

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 15,491 11,286 4,205 14,883 10,678 4,205 608 608 0

Recognised as:

Commissioning employee benefits 15,491 14,883 608

Provider employee benefits 0 0 0

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 15,491 14,883 608

2012-13 Permanently employed Other

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Salaries and wages 449 397 52 449 397 52 0 0 0 

Social Security costs 46 41 5 46 41 5 0 0 0 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 71 63 8 71 63 8 0 0 0 

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Post Employment Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Employment Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Termination Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL excluding capitalised costs 566 501 65 566 501 65 0 0 0 

Employee Benefits - Prior- year

Total

Permanently 

employed Other 

£000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits Gross Expenditure  2011-12

Salaries and wages 13,375 12,925 450 

Social security costs 1,039 1,010 29 

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 1,684 1,637 47 

Other pension costs 0 0 0 

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 

Termination benefits 2,671 2,671 0 

Total gross employee benefits 18,769 18,243 526 

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (448) (448) 0 

Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 18,321 17,795 526 

Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 18,769 18,243 526 

Recognised as:

Commissioning employee benefits 18,769 

Provider employee benefits 0 

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 18,769 

7.2 Staff Numbers
2012-13 2011-12

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers

Medical and dental 8.5 8.5 0.0 13.6 13.6 0.0 

Ambulance staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Administration and estates 232.4 227.9 4.5 254.0 249.7 4.3 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 38.6 38.6 0.0 43.3 43.3 0.0 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 19.2 19.2 0.0 19.5 19.5 0.0 

Social Care Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Other 2.9 2.9 0.0 2.5 2.5 0.0 

TOTAL 301.7 297.2 4.5 333.5 329.2 4.3 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

7.3  Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2012-13 2011-12

Number Number

Total Days Lost 1,911 19,612

Total Staff Years 297 2,655

Average working Days Lost 6.44 7.39

The above figures have been calculated based on the relevant calendar year rather than financial year.  

The comparator figures for 2011-12 included DCHS staff. DCHS became a Trust in it's own right in April 2011 so are not included in the 2012 figures.

2012-13 2011-12

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 2 3

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 103 192

Note 7.1-3 P
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7.4 Exit Packages agreed during 2012-13

2012-13 2011-12

Exit package cost band (including any special 

payment element)

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Total number 

of exit 

packages by 

cost band

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Total number of exit 

packages by cost 

band

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Lees than £10,000 0 1 1 0 3 3

£10,001-£25,000 0 1 1 0 10 10

£25,001-£50,000 0 4 4 0 11 11

£50,001-£100,000 0 0 0 0 12 12

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 5 5

£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 1 1

>£200,000 0 0 0 0 1 1
Total number of exit packages by type (total 

cost) 0 6 6 0 43 43

£s £s £s £s £s £s

Total resource cost 0 143,145 143,145 0 2,671,000 2,671,000

This note provides an analysis of Exit Packages agreed during the year. Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions 

of the NHS Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

Note 7.4 P
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7.5 Pension costs 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under

these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded,

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary

of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their

share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution

scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme

for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would

be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal

valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. Actuarial

assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal valuations using updated membership data and are accepted

as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2013, is

based on the valuation data as 31 March 2012, updated to 31 March 2013 with summary global member and accounting data.

In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the

discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual

NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the

NHS Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into

account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 

2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal

actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while

consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of the

reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015. 

The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the

consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer

representatives as deemed appropriate. 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used to inform the

contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.

c) Scheme provisions 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is

not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits

can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of

the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of

membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon

total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum,

up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on

changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer

Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of

fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in

service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full

amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s

approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

Note 7.5a-c
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8. Better Payment Practice Code

8.1 Measure of compliance 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12 2011-12

Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 19,193 93,099 20,174 91,986

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 18,993 92,198 19,990 90,803
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 98.96% 99.03% 99.09% 98.71%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 5,211 806,564 5,323 791,143

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 5,168 805,976 5,295 791,012
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 99.17% 99.93% 99.47% 99.98%

8.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

0 0

0 0

Total 0 0

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the PCT to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, 

whichever is later.

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

Note 8 P
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9. Investment Income 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Rental Income

PFI finance lease revenue (planned) 0 0 0 0

PFI finance lease revenue (contingent) 0 0 0 0

Other finance lease revenue 647 0 647 810

Subtotal 647 0 647 810

Interest Income

LIFT: equity dividends receivable 0 0 0 0

LIFT: loan interest receivable 94 0 94 128

Bank interest 0 0 0 0

Other loans and receivables 0 0 0 0
Impaired financial assets 0 0 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Subtotal 94 0 94 128

Total investment income 741 0 741 938

10.  Other Gains and Losses 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE) 0 0 0 229

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (intangibles) 0 0 0 0

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets - other than held for sale 0 0 0 0

Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCNE 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at fair value through the SoCNE 0 0 0 0

Change in fair value of investment property 0 0 0 0

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 229

11.  Finance Costs 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest

Interest on obligations under finance leases 34 0 34 57

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

    - main finance cost 0 0 0 0

    - contingent finance cost 0 0 0 0

Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:

    - main finance cost 2,852 0 2,852 2,892

    - contingent finance cost 646 0 646 501

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 0 0 0 0

Other interest expense 0 0 0 0

Total interest expense 3,532 0 3,532 3,450

Other finance costs 0 0 0 0

Provisions - unwinding of discount 119 0 119 157

Total  3,651 0 3,651 3,607

Note 9-11
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12.1 Property, plant and equipment

2012-13

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

and payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2012 25,256 110,238 0 2,094 5,209 0 3,020 1,953 147,770

Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 1,796 0 0 0 0 1,796

Additions Purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions  Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 2,705 0 (2,911) 55 0 37 114 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale (100) (119) 0 0 (555) 0 0 (18) (792)

Disposals other than for sale 0 (1,998) 0 0 (2,034) 0 (1,458) 0 (5,490)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 5 3,017 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,022

Impairments/negative indexation (5) (310) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (315)

Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 25,156 113,533 0 979 2,675 0 1,599 2,049 145,991

Depreciation

At 1 April 2012 0 0 0 132 3,678 0 2,136 213 6,159

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 (160) 0 0 (6) (166)

Disposals other than for sale 0 (1,998) 0 0 (2,034) 0 (1,458) 0 (5,490)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 598 0 9 0 0 9 42 658

Reversal of Impairments 0 (14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (14)

Charged During the Year 0 4,476 0 0 269 0 384 218 5,347

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 3,062 0 141 1,753 0 1,071 467 6,494

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 25,156 110,471 0 838 922 0 528 1,582 139,497

Purchased 25,156 107,373 0 838 903 0 528 1,582 136,380

Donated 0 3,098 0 0 19 0 0 0 3,117

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 25,156 110,471 0 838 922 0 528 1,582 139,497

Asset financing:

Owned 25,156 74,029 0 838 922 0 528 1,582 103,055

Held on finance lease 0 1,024 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,024

On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 35,418 0 0 0 0 0 0 35,418

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 25,156 110,471 0 838 922 0 528 1,582 139,497

Note 12.1 P



Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2012 10,770 19,764 0 0 373 0 0 3 30,910

Movements (detailed below) (5,735) 834 0 0 (327) 0 0 0 (5,228)

At 31 March 2013 5,035 20,598 0 0 46 0 0 3 25,682

Revaluation Reserve Movements 2012-13

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

& payments 

on account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Revaluation Gain 5 3,017 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,022

Revaluation Loss (5) (310) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (315)

Transfer to General Fund (5,735) (1,873) (327) 0 (7,935)

Total Movement (5,735) 834 0 0 (327) 0 0 0 (5,228)

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2012-13

£000

Land 0

Buildings excl Dwellings 1,701

Dwellings 0

Plant & Machinery 95

Balance as at YTD 1,796

Note 12.1 P
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12.2 Property, plant and equipment

2011-12

Land Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 

construction 

and 

payments on 

account

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2011 26,725 103,597 0 3,662 5,333 0 4,424 1,623 145,364

Additions - purchased 0 0 0 2,280 0 0 0 0 2,280

Additions - donated 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 6

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 3,331 0 (3,848) 68 0 113 336 0

Reclassified as held for sale (576) (182) 0 0 (6) 0 0 0 (764)

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 (186) 0 (1,517) (5) (1,708)

Revaluation & indexation gains 123 7,013 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,136

Impairments (716) (15) 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (732)

Reversals of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation (300) (3,512) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3,812)

At 31 March 2012 25,256 110,238 0 2,094 5,209 0 3,020 1,953 147,770

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 0 0 0 0 3,459 0 3,218 22 6,699

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications  as Held for Sale 0 (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2)

Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (186) 0 (1,517) (5) (1,708)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 300 2,113 0 132 20 0 0 4 2,569

Reversal of Impairments 0 (2,342) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,342)

Charged During the Year 0 3,743 0 0 385 0 435 192 4,755

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation (300) (3,512) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3,812)

At 31 March 2012 0 0 0 132 3,678 0 2,136 213 6,159

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 25,256 110,238 0 1,962 1,531 0 884 1,740 141,611

Purchased 25,256 107,131 0 1,962 1,504 0 884 1,740 138,477

Donated 0 3,107 0 0 27 0 0 0 3,134

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 25,256 110,238 0 1,962 1,531 0 884 1,740 141,611

Asset financing:

Owned 21,476 76,031 0 1,962 1,531 0 884 1,740 103,624

Held on finance lease 0 1,102 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,102

On-SOFP PFI contracts 3,780 33,105 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,885

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 25,256 110,238 0 1,962 1,531 0 884 1,740 141,611

Note 12.2 P
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12.3 Property, plant and equipment

Minimum 

Life

Maximum 

Life

(years) (years)

Software Licences 5 5

Licences and Trademarks 0 0

Patents 0 0

Development Expenditure 0 0

Buildings excl. Dwellings 50 100

Dwellings 50 50

Plant and Machinery 5 15

Transport Equipment 7 7

Information Technology 5 8

Furniture and Fittings 10 10

All land and building assets were revalued as at 1 April 2009.  All land and buildings previously valued using a depreciated replacement 

cost were valued by the District Valuer on a Modern Equivalent Assets (MEA) valuation basis.  This means that the valuation is based on 

the depreciated cost of rebuilding the asset using modern materials and not on a like for like basis.  

In order to give a fair value as at 31 March 2013 the PCT has applied a range of appropriate indices supplied by Gerald Eve Chartered 

Surveyors and Commercial Property Consultants. 

Specifically for LIFT asset valuations  the PCT used the services of the District Valuer.

Economic Lives of Plant Property and Equipment (at the Point of Bringing the Non Current Assets onto the SOFP)

Note 12.3  P
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13.1 Intangible non-current assets

2012-13

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2012 0 198 0 0 0 198

Additions - purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions Leased 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (66) 0 0 0 (66)

Revaluation & indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 132 0 0 0 132

Amortisation

At 1 April 2012 0 121 0 0 0 121

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (66) 0 0 0 (66)

Revaluation or indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 26 0 0 0 26

In-year transfers to NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 81 0 0 0 81

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 0 51 0 0 0 51

Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 comprises

Purchased 0 51 0 0 0 51

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 0 51 0 0 0 51

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0

Movements 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0

Note 13.1 P
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13.2 Intangible non-current assets

2011-12

Software 

internally 

generated

Software 

purchased

Licences & 

trademarks

Patents Development 

expenditure

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2011 0 234 0 0 0 234

Additions - purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (36) 0 0 0 (36)

Revaluation & indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0

In-year transfers to/from NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative dep netted off cost following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 0 198 0 0 0 198

Amortisation

At 1 April 2011 0 131 0 0 0 131

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (36) 0 0 0 (36)

Revaluation or indexation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 26 0 0 0 26

In-year transfers to NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less cumulative dep written down on revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 0 121 0 0 0 121

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 0 77 0 0 0 77

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 comprises

Purchased 0 77 0 0 0 77

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2012 0 77 0 0 0 77

Note 13.2 P
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13.3 Intangible non-current assets

Economic Lives of Non-Current Assets

Min Life Max Life

Years Years

Intangible Assets

Software Licences 5 5

Licences and Trademarks 0 0

Patents 0 0

Development Expenditure 0 0

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings exc Dwellings 50 100

Dwellings 50 50

Plant & Machinery 5 15

Transport Equipment 7 7

Information Technology 5 8

Furniture and Fittings 10 10

Open Market Value of Assets at balance sheet date Land

Buildings 

excl. Dwellings Total

dwellings

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Open Market Value at 31 March 2013 25,156 110,471 0 135,627

Open Market Value at 31 March 2012 25,256 110,238 0 135,494

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at amortised historic cost. Intangible asset values are sufficiently short that amortised historic 

cost is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

The only class of intangible assets held by the PCT is purchased computer software. These assets are amortised over their useful economic lives of 

five years.

Note 13.3 P
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14. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in  2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Changes in market price 644 0 644

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 644 0 644

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over Specification of Assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Changes in market price 315 0 0

Total impairments for PPE charged to reserves 315 0 0

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment 959 0 644

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Changes in market price 0 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0 0

Intangible Assets impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Changes in market price 0 0 0

Total impairments for Intangible Assets charged to Reserves 0 0 0

Total Impairments of Intangibles 0 0 0

Financial Assets charged to SoCNE

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0 0

Financial Assets impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

TOTAL impairments for Financial Assets charged to reserves 0 0 0

Total Impairments of Financial Assets 0 0 0

Non-current assets held for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE.

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Note 14 P



Derbyshire County PCT - Annual Accounts 2012-13

14. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in  2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13

Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Changes in market price 0 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0 0

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0

Inventories - impairments and reversals charged to SoCNE

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0 0 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0 0 0

Changes in Market Price 0 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0 0

Total impairments of Inventories 0 0 0

Investment Property impairments charged to SoCNE

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0 0 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0 0 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0 0 0

Changes in Market Price 0 0 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0 0 0

Total Investment Property impairments charged to SoCNE 0 0 0

Investment Property impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve

Loss or Damage Resulting from Normal Operations 0 0 0

Over Specification of Assets 0 0 0

Abandonment of Assets in the Course of Construction 0 0 0

Unforeseen Obsolescence 0 0 0

Loss as a Result of a Catastrophe 0 0 0

Other (Free text note required)* 0 0 0

Changes in Market Price 0 0 0

TOTAL impairments for Investment Property charged to Reserves 0 0 0

Total Investment Property Impairments 0 0 0

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve 315 0 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - DEL 0 0 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - AME 644 0 644

Overall Total Impairments 959 0 644

Of which:

Impairment on revaluation to "modern equivalent asset" basis 644 0 644

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above - 

PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SoCNE -

DEL* 0 0 0

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted  Asset Impairments: amount charged to 

SoCNE -AME* 0 0 0

The £315,000 impairment charged to the Revaluation Reserve does not fall under Admin or Programme. Only income or expenditure that is 

reported through the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure can be classed as Admin or Programme.

The £315,000 impairment is a movement in the Statement of Financial Position.

Note 14 P
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15 Investment property
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

At fair value 

Balance at 1 April 2012 0 0 

Additions Through Subsequent Expenditure 0 0 

Other Acquisitions 0 0 

Disposals 0 0 

Property Reclassified as Held for Sale 0 0 

Loss from Fair Value Adjustments - Impairments 0 0 

Gain from Fair Value Adjustments - Reversal of Impairments 0 0 

Gain from Fair Value Adjustments 0 0 

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies 0 0 

Other Changes 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2013 0 0 

Investment property capital transactions in 2012-13

Capital expenditure 0 0 

Capital income 0 0 

0 0 

16  Commitments

16.1 Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 687 883

Intangible assets 0 20

Total 687 903

16.2 Other financial commitments 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Not later than one year 0 0

Later than one year and not later than five year 0 0

Later than five years 0 0

Total 0 0

17 Intra-Government and other balances Current 

receivables

Non-current 

receivables

Current 

payables

Non-current 

payables

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balances with other Central Government Bodies 1,850 0 1,874 0

Balances with Local Authorities 116 0 3,077 0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 0 0 0 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 1,249 0 6,774 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 2,846 10,409 43,146 0
At 31 March 2013 6,061 10,409 54,871 0

prior period:
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 2,600 0 2,402 0

Balances with Local Authorities 328 0 1,426 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 8,482 0 9,838 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 5,336 10,504 37,581 0
At 31 March 2012 16,746 10,504 51,247 0

The PCT has not entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other 

service concession arrangements).
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18 Inventories Drugs Consumables Energy Work in progress Loan Equipment Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of write-down previously taken to SoCNE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

19.1  Trade and other receivables

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables - revenue 2,733 11,082 0 0

NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS receivables - revenue 2,220 3,091 356 388

Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 633 2,138 0 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables (23) (30) 0 0

VAT 366 334 0 0

Current/non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements 

prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 132 124 10,053 10,116

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables 0 7 0 0

Total 6,061 16,746 10,409 10,504

Total current and non current 16,470 27,250

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

19.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

By up to three months 30 528

By three to six months 0 26

By more than six months 100 0

Total 130 554

19.3  Provision for impairment of receivables 2012-13 2011-12

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 (30) (23)

Amount written off during the year 0 0

Amount recovered during the year 7 0

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired 0 (7)

Balance at 31 March 2013 (23) (30)

Current Non-current

The great majority of trade is with other NHS bodies, including other Primary Care Trusts as commissioners for NHS patient care services.  As 

Primary Care Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

Note 18 & 19 P
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20 NHS LIFT investments Loan Share capital Total

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 717 72 789

Additions 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0

Loan repayments (15) 0 (15)

Revaluations 0 0 0

Loans repayable within 12 months 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013 702 72 774

Balance at 1 April 2011 817 72 889 

Additions 0 0 0 

Disposals 0 0 0 

Loan repayments (100) 0 (100)

Revaluations 0 0 0 

Loans repayable within 12 months 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2012 717 72 789 

21.1  Other financial assets - Current
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Opening balance 1 April 0 0

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies in year 0 0

Other Movements 0 0

Closing balance 31 March 0 0

21.2 Other Financial Assets - Non Current
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Opening balance 1 April 789 889

Additions 0 0

Revaluation 0 0

Impairments 0 0

Impairment Reversals 0 0

Transferred to current financial assets 0 0

Disposals (15) (100)

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies in year 0 0

Total Other Financial Assets - Non Current 774 789

21.3 Other Financial Assets - Capital Analysis

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Capital Expenditure 0 0 

Capital Income (15) 0 

22 Other current assets 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

EU Emissions Trading Scheme Allowance 0 0

Other Assets 0 0

Total 0 0

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Opening balance 4 5

Net change in year 988 (1)

Closing balance 992 4

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Service 992 0

Commercial banks 0 4

Cash in hand 0 0

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 992 4

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 992 4

Patients' money held by the PCT, not included above 0 0



Derbyshire County PCT - Annual Accounts 2012-13

24  Non-current assets held for sale Land Buildings, 

excl. 

dwellings

Dwellings Asset Under 

Construction 

and 

Payments on 

Account

Plant and 

Machinery

Transport and 

Equipment

Information 

Technology

Furniture and 

Fittings

Intangible 

Assets

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 1,266 491 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,757

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 100 119 0 0 395 0 0 12 0 626

Less assets sold in the year (676) (300) 0 0 (395) 0 0 (12) 0 (1,383)

Less impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other 

than disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013 690 310 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Balance at 1 April 2011 733 511 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,244

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year 576 180 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 762

Less assets sold in the year (43) (200) 0 0 (6) 0 0 0 0 (249)

Less impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other 

than disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2012 1,266 491 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,757

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation reserve balances in respect of non-current assets held for sale were:

At 31 March 2012 0

At 31 March 2013 0

During 2012-13 the PCT disposed of the following assets:

Whitworth land £490,000

The Manse land £70,000

The Manse building £143,000

South Normanton Clinic land £16,000

South Normanton Clinic building £39,000

Clay Cross Clinic land £100,000

Clay Cross Clinic building £119,000

Radiology Equipment £395,000

The old St. Oswalds Hospital, which was included in the Held for Sale note last financial year, remains unsold at the end of 2012-13. This site continues to meet the criteria of being 'held for sale'. Market conditions are thought to be the 

reason it has not yet sold. The land and building values are £690,000 and £310,000 respectively.

Radiology Fixtures and Fittings £11,000
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31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest payable 0 0

NHS payables - revenue 330 808 0 0

NHS payables - capital 93 2,773 0 0

NHS accruals and deferred income 8,182 8,556 0 0

Family Health Services (FHS) payables 22,011 20,407

Non-NHS payables - revenue 3,916 1,273 0 0

Non-NHS payables - capital 218 523 0 0

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 19,886 16,019 0 0

Social security costs 93 880

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 32 0

Payments received on account 0 8 0 0

Other 110 0 0 0

Total 54,871 51,247 0 0

Total payables (current and non-current) 54,871 51,247

Social security costs include £72,000 (2011-12: £880,000) in respect of outstanding pension contributions.

26 Other liabilities
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

PFI/LIFT deferred credit 0 0 0 0

Lease incentives 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 0 0

27 Borrowings
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft - commercial banks 0 0

PFI liabilities:

     Main liability 0 0 0 0

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

LIFT liabilities:

     Main liability 708 712 44,589 45,297

     Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0 0 0

Finance lease liabilities 123 341 0 123

Other (describe) 0 0 0 0

Total 831 1,053 44,589 45,420

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 45,420 46,473

Borrowings/Loans - Payment of Principal Falling Due in:

DH Other Total

£000s £000s £000s

0 - 1 Years 0 831 831

1 - 2 Years 0 746 746

2 - 5 Years 0 1,991 1,991

Over 5 Years 0 41,852 41,852

TOTAL 0 45,420 45,420

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

25 Trade and other payables Current Non-current

Note 25-27 P
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28  Other financial liabilities
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded Derivatives at Fair Value through SoCNE 0 0 0 0 

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through SoCNE 0 0 0 0 

Amortised Cost 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 0 0 

29  Deferred income
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at1 April 2012 0 1,277 0 0 

Deferred income addition 0 (150) 0 0 

Transfer of deferred income 0 (1,127) 0 0 

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2013 0 0 0 0 

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 0 0 

30 Finance lease obligations

Amounts payable under finance leases (Buildings)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 123 375 123 341 

Between one and five years 0 130 0 123 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges        0 (41)

Present value of minimum lease payments 123 464 123 464 

Included in:

  Current borrowings 123 341 

  Non-current borrowings 0 123 

123 464 

Amounts payable under finance leases (Land)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 0 0 0 0 

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges        0 0 

Present value of minimum lease payments 0 0 0 0 

Included in:

  Current borrowings 0 0 

  Non-current borrowings 0 0 

0 0 

Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 0 0 0 0 

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges        0 0 

Present value of minimum lease payments 0 0 0 0 

Included in:

  Current borrowings 0 0 

  Non-current borrowings 0 0 

0 0 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Finance leases as lessee £000 £000

Future Sublease Payments Expected to be received 0 0 

Contingent Rents Recognised as an Expense 0 0 

Current Non-current

Current Non-current

Derbyshire County PCT has contracted for healthcare services provided from Nottingham Independent Sector Treatment Centres 

(ISTC) in 2012-13

Historically the lead PCT for each ISTC contract would account for the full finance lease arrangement with the other contracting PCT only 

accounting for the provision of healthcare.

Nottingham City PCT is the lead PCT for the Nottingham ISTC and they have determined that splitting the finance lease amongst all 

participating PCTs would be the most appropriate accounting treatment.  

Derbyshire County PCT is not obligated or incentivised to purchase Nottingham ISTC at the end of the lease term on 31st July 2013 and 

pays no contingent rent.

The reduction in finance lease obligations from 2012 to 2013 is due to payments made in year.

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease 

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease 

payments

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease 

Note 28-30 P
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31 Finance lease receivables as lessor

Amounts receivable under finance leases (buildings)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 702 702 132 124 

Between one and five years 3,510 3,510 796 749 

After five years 16,110 16,743 9,257 9,367 

Less future finance charges (10,137) (10,715) - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 10,185 10,240 10,185 10,240 

Less allowance for uncollectible lease payments: 0 0 0 0 
Total finance lease receivable recognised in the 

statement of financial position 10,185 10,240 10,185 10,240 

Included in:

  Current finance lease receivables 132 124 

   Non-current finance lease receivables 10,053 10,116 

10,185 10,240 

Amounts receivable under finance leases (land)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 0 0 0 0 

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges 0 0 - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 0 0 0 0 

Less allowance for uncollectible lease payments: 0 0 0 0 
Total finance lease receivable recognised in the 

statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 

Included in:

  Current finance lease receivables 0 0 

   Non-current finance lease receivables 0 0 

0 0 

Amounts receivable under finance leases (other)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 0 0 0 0 

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 

After five years 0 0 0 0 

Less future finance charges 0 0 - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 0 0 0 0 

Less allowance for uncollectible lease payments: 0 0 0 0 
Total finance lease receivable recognised in the 

statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 

Included in:

  Current finance lease receivables 0 0 

   Non-current finance lease receivables 0 0 

0 0 

Finance Leases (as a Lessor) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

The unguaranteed residual value accruing to the PCT is 6,369 6,369 

Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum lease 

payments receivable 0 0 

Rental Income 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Contingent rent 50 25

Other 0 0

Total rental income 50 25

Finance Lease Commitments 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000s £000s

Lease 0 0

Gross investments in leases Present value of minimum lease 

Gross investments in leases Present value of minimum lease 

The PCT purchased Barlborough Independent Sector Treatment Centre (ISTC) on the 31st March 2010.  CareUK provide the 

healthcare services from the ISTC and lease the land and buildings from the PCT.  

In July 2010 CareUK signed a 30 year lease with the PCT.  Under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), IAS17 "Leases" 

dictates that the land and buildings elements of the lease are individually assessed to establish if a Finance lease arrangement exists.  

The assesssment concluded that the buildings element of the lease should be accounted for as a Finance Lease, i.e. off-SOFP; and 

the land element as an operating lease.  The amounts due under the Finance lease are detailed below. 

Gross investments in leases Present value of minimum lease 

payments
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32   Provisions Comprising:

Total

Pensions to 

Former 

Directors

Pensions 

Relating to 

Other Staff Legal Claims Restructuring

Continuing 

Care Equal Pay

Agenda for 

Change Other Redundancy

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 7,671 0 5,083 73 0 462 0 0 667 1,386 

Arising During the Year 8,090 0 491 30 0 6,834 0 0 719 16 

Utilised During the Year (1,391) 0 (602) (70) 0 (122) 0 0 (487) (110)

Reversed Unused (788) 0 (79) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (709)

Unwinding of Discount 119 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Change in Discount Rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Transferred (to)/from otherPublic Sector  bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2013 13,701 0 5,012 33 0 7,174 0 0 899 583 

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:

No Later than One Year 2,574 0 534 33 0 693 0 0 899 415 

Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 8,472 0 1,866 0 0 6,481 0 0 0 125 

Later than Five Years 2,655 0 2,612 0 0 0 0 0 0 43 

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation 

Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:

As at 31 March 2013 323 

As at 31 March 2012 869 

33 Contingencies 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Contingent liabilities

Equal Pay 0 0

Other (4,615) (19)

Amounts Recoverable Against Contingent Liabilities 0 0

Net Value of Contingent Liabilities (4,615) (19)

Contingent Assets

Contingent Assets 0 0

Net Value of Contingent Assets 0 0

The PCT has recognised a contingent laibility of £4,537,588 in respect of retrospective Continuing Healthcare claims. This is in addition to the provision referenced above.

The PCT has also reconised contingent liabilities of £27,000 and £50,000 for NHSLA claims and an appeal by a patient respectively.

The Continuing Care provision relates to potential retrospective Continuing Healthcare claims. Patients are entitled to have their care funded by the NHS if their needs meet the NHS Continuing Heathcare eligibility criteria. If funding is 

declined the patient or their representative may submit a request for a review of the decision. For Appeals upheld re-imbursement is considered using the Department of Health guidance Continuing Healthcare: Continuing Care Redress 

(March 2007). 

A HMRC Compliance Audit was undertaken during 2011-12. As part of their review, HMRC have asked for further information around the “employment status” of medical staff used, but not directly employed by the Trust. Whilst the PCT is 

working with HMRC to determine the exact postion, a provision, based upon an estimated liability, has been included.

The pension provision relates to the cost of early retirement of former staff.

Legal claims relate to claims made by staff and vistors.  An assessment has been made as to the likelihood of these claims to succeed and provisions made as appropriate.  The timing and amount of these payments cannot be known until 

each case is settled.  All these cases are likely to be settled within the next financial year.

Note 32&33 P
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34  PFI and LIFT - additional information

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

34.1 Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI

Total charge to operating expenses in year - OFF SOFP PFI 0 0

Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 0 0

Total 0 0

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI

No Later than One Year 0 0

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 0 0

Later than Five Years 0 0

Total 0 0

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Estimated Capital Value of Project - off SOFP PFI 0 0 

Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP PFI 0 0 

Value of Reversionary Interest - off SOFP PFI 0 0 

34.2 Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due

Analysed by when PFI payments are due

No Later than One Year 0 0 

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 0 0 

Later than Five Years 0 0 

Subtotal 0 0 

Less: Interest Element 0 0 

Total 0 0 

34.3 Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of on and off SOFP LIFT

Derbyshire County PCT does not have any operational PFI or LIFT schemes that are not accounted for on-SOFP.

Service charges of on Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) LIFT 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Total Charge to Operating Expenses in year - OFF SOFP LIFT 0 0

Service element of on SOFP LIFT charged to operating expenses in year 1,011 997

Total 1,011 997

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

34.4 Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP LIFT and the service element of on SOFP LIFT.

LIFT Scheme Expiry Date:

No Later than One Year 1,157 1,058 

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 5,585 5,132 

Later than Five Years 48,083 49,050 

Total 54,825 55,240 

The estimated annual payments in future years are expected to be materially different from those which the NHS Trust is 

committed to make during the next year.  The likely financial effect of this is: 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

Estimated capital value of project - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

Value of Residual Interest - off SOFP LIFT 0 0

34.5 Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP LIFT Contracts due 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000

No Later than One Year 4,257 3,564 

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 17,460 13,754 

Later than Five Years 113,336 83,323 

Subtotal 135,053 100,641 

Less: Interest Element (89,756) (54,632)

Total 45,297 46,009 

35  Impact of IFRS treatment - 2012-13 Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g LIFT/PFI)

Depreciation charges 327 0 327 

Interest Expense 1,745 0 1,745 

Impairment charge - AME 491 491 

Impairment charge - DEL 0 0 0 

Other Expenditure 504 0 504 

Revenue Receivable from subleasing 0 0 0 

Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 3,067 0 3,067 

Revenue consequences of LIFT/PFI schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease income) (2,707) 0 (2,707)

Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 360 0 360 

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12

Capital expenditure 2012-13 0 

UK GAAP capital expenditure 2012-13 (Reversionary Interest) 0 

Derbyshire County PCT has five operational LIFT schemes: Swadlincote, Long Eaton, Alfreton, Ashbourne and Eden.

The arrangement is that Southern Derbyshire LIFT Co will provide and maintain a healthcare facility for the period of the lease and at the end of the term 

Derbyshire County PCT will have the option to purchase the assets.  Ashbourne LIFT is on a 30 year lease, the other schemes are on 25 year leases.

Since the PCT does not have any plans to reprovide the provision of this healthcare from another facility the accounting treatment assumes that the assets 

will be purchased at the end of the lease term.

Under IFRIC 12 the PCT accounts for the facility as an asset of the PCT in plant, property and equipment and depreciates over the useful economic life of the 

asset and recognises a lease liability over the term of the lease which includes the final purchase price of the asset at the end of the lease term.

The substance of the contract is that the PCT has a finance lease and the payments made to Southern Derbyshire LIFTCo comprise two elements - imputed 

finance lease charges and services charges.  

Note 34&35 P
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36 Financial Instruments

Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

36.1 Financial Assets At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

receivables

Available for 

sale

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables - NHS 0 2,733 0 2,733

Receivables - non-NHS 0 13,128 0 13,128

Cash at bank and in hand 0 992 0 992

Other financial assets 0 703 72 775

Total at 31 March 2013 0 17,556 72 17,628

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables - NHS 0 11,082 0 11,082

Receivables - non-NHS 0 13,695 0 13,695

Cash at bank and in hand 0 4 0 4

Other financial assets 0 718 72 790

Total at 31 March 2012 0 25,499 72 25,571

36.2  Financial Liabilities At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Other Total 

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

NHS payables 0 8,605 8,605

Non-NHS payables 0 26,256 26,256

Other borrowings 0 0 0

PFI & finance lease obligations 0 45,421 45,421

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2013 0 80,282 80,282

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

NHS payables 0 12,137 12,137

Non-NHS payables 0 22,210 22,210

Other borrowings 0 464 464

PFI & finance lease obligations 0 46,009 46,009

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2012 0 80,820 80,820

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying value.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating 

or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  As the cash requirements of the PCT are met through 

Parliamentary Funding, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating risk that would apply to a non-public sector body of 

a similar size.  The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts for non-financial items in line with the PCT’s expected 

purchase and usage requirements and the PCT is therefore exposed to little credit, liquidity or market list.

The PCT is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and 

Sterling based. The PCT has no overseas operations. The PCT therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

PCTs are not permitted to borrow.  The PCT therefore has low exposure to interest-rate fluctuations

Because the majority of the PCT’s income comes from funds voted by Parliament the PCT has low exposure to credit risk.

The PCT is required to operate within limits set by the Secretary of State for the financial year and draws down funds from the 

Department of Health as the requirement arises.  The PCT is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Note 36 P
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37  Related party transactions
Derbyshire County PCT is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

During the year none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any material transactions with Derbyshire County 

Primary Care Trust other than those set out below:

Payments to Receipts from Amounts owed Amounts due from

Related Party Related Party to Related Party Related Party

Name Related Party £000 £000 £000 £000

Ian Gibbard Director of High Peak CAB 104 0 0 0

Ian Gibbard Director of University of Derby 233 0 0 0

Jackie Pendleton Governor of Chesterfield Royal Hospital Foundation Trust 163,574 90 0 99

Jackie Pendleton Governor of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 141,882 11,516 1,448 232

Jackie Pendleton Non Director Member of Governing Body of Primary Care Commissioning 17 0 0 0

Pauline Ambrey Trustee of Creative Support 46 0 13 0

Paul Devlin Partner is a Trustee of Sexual Abuse & Incest Line (SAIL) 52 0 0 0

Paul Devlin Partner is Operational Director for Red Cross 122 0 0 0

Paul Devlin Partner is Board member of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 141,882 11,516 1,448 232

Alison McKinna Husband is an employee of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 141,882 11,516 1,448 232

Bruce Laurence Shared post with Derbyshire County Council 46,698 1,557 2,924 116

Dr Ian Matthews Partner of Chapel Street Medical Centre 1,386 0 24 0

Mark Smith Trustee of Chesterfield Citizens Advice Bureau 156 0 0 0

Wendy Sunney Provides management services to Chesterfield Health Provider Ltd 6 0 0 0

Wendy Sunney Sole proprietor of Smart Management Support 32 0 0 0

Cluster Board Derby City PCT 3,287 4,303 63 1,069

Cluster Board Nottinghamshire County PCT 511 0 346 29

Cluster Board Nottingham City PCT 5,235 6 20 27

Related Party Transactions 2011-12 Comparators

Payments to Receipts from Amounts owed Amounts due from

Related Party Related Party to Related Party Related Party

Name Related Party £000 £000 £000 £000

Ian Gibbard Trustee and Treasurer of High Peak CAB 104 141 0 0

Ian Gibbard Governor of University of Derby 26 0 0 0

Jackie Pendleton Governor of Chesterfield Royal Hospital Foundation Trust 155,815 40 566 0

Pauline Ambrey Trustee of Creative Support 23 0 2 0

Pauline Ambrey Associate Mental Health Act Manager for Derbyshire Community Health Services 137,239 6,302 933 2,643

Paul Devlin Partner is a Trustee of Sexual Abuse & Incest Line (SAIL) 39 0 0 0

Paul Devlin Partner is Operational Director for Red Cross 122 0 0 0

Paul Devlin Partner is Board member of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 137,239 6,302 933 2,643

Ian Forrest Wife is Trustee of Derbyshire Dales Careline 5 0 0 0

Alison McKinna Husband is an employee of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 137,239 6,302 933 2,643

Cluster Board Derby City PCT 3,020 3,225 674 704

All transactions have been at arms length as part of Derbyshire County PCT's primary health commissioning and public health responsibilities.

Burton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust NHS Pensions Agency

Chesterfield Royal Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Nottingham City PCT

Christie Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust

Derby City PCT Nottinghamshire County Teaching PCT

Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Prescription Pricing Authority

Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Sheffield Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

East Midlands Ambulance Services NHS Trust Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

East Midlands Strategic Health Authority Stockport NHS Foundation Trust

Leicestershire County & Rutland PCT Stockport NHS Foundation Trust

NHS Litigation Authority Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Trust

Bolsover District Council

Derbyshire County Council

Derby City Council

HMRC

North East Derbyshire District Council

Nottinghamshire County Council

In addition, the Primary Care Trust has had a significant number of transactions with other Government Departments and local Government

bodies.  Most of these transactions have been with: -

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year, Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust has had a significant number of transactions with the 

Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are listed below: -

Note 37 
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38 Losses and special payments

The total number of losses cases in 2012-13 and their total value was as follows:

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses - PCT management costs 15,546 3

Special payments - PCT management costs 0 0
Losses in respect of the provision of family practitioner services 0 0
Special payments in respect of he provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Total losses 15,546 3

Total special payments 0 0

Total losses and special payments 15,546 3

The total number of losses cases in 2011-12 and their total value was as follows:

Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases

£s

Losses - PCT management costs 5,116 2

Special payments - PCT management costs 0 0
Losses in respect of the provision of family practitioner services 0 0
Special payments in respect of he provision of family practitioner services 0 0

Total losses 5,116 2

Total special payments 0 0

Total losses and special payments 5,116 2

39 Third party assets
There are no third party assets in 2012-13

40 Integrated Community Equipment Services (ICES) Pooled Budget 

Memorandum of the Pooled Budget 1 April 2012 - 31 March 2013

2012-13 2011-12

£000s £000s

Funding

Balance on funding b/f 0 0 

Derbyshire County Council 2,244 2,029 

Derbyshire County PCT 2,743 2,479 

Total Funding 4,987 4,508 

Expenditure

Employee costs 35 44 

Administration costs 13 0 

Repairs & Maintenance 306 200 

Purchase of Equipment 9,155 7,968 

less: Collection Rebates (4,522) (3,704)

Total Expenditure 4,987 4,508 

41 Cashflows relating to exceptional items
There are no exceptional items in 2012-13

42.1 Events after the end of the reporting period

42.2 Events after the end of the reporting period - PCT Closure and Succession

Derbyshire County PCT has a pooled budget arrangement with Derbyshire County Council.  Derbyshire County Council is the host.  The memorandum account for the pooled budget is 

shown below.

The PCT closed on the 31st March 2013. The four Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) North Derbyshire, Hardwick, Erewash and Southern Derbyshire along 

with the National Commissioning Board, will take over the bulk of commissioning responsibilities whilst Derbyshire County Council and Public Health England will take over 

the Public Health commissioning responsibilities.

The PCT's SOFP will be split with assets and liabilities transferring to successor and other NHS bodies using Absorption Accounting. A few residual SOFP balances will 

transfer to non NHS bodies.

Other than those detailed in Note 42.2 there have been no events, either favourable or unfavourable, that occurred between the end of the reporting period and the date that 

the financial statements were authorised for issue.

Note 38 -42


	Binder8
	DCPCT Annual Report 2012-13_cover
	Derby City Primary Care Trust and Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Annual Report and Accounts

	Derby City Primary Care Trust and Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Annual Report


	DCDCoPCT Annual Report 2012-13 (1)

	Derby City Primary Care Trust Account 2012-13
	DCPCT Accounts 2012-13_cover
	Derby City Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Accounts

	Derby City Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Accounts


	derby city statement of responsibility - signing officer
	derby city pct statement of responsibility
	derby city pct - annual governance statement
	independent auditors report to the doh accounting officer
	Derby City bs signed
	DCPCT Accounts 2012-13

	Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust Accounts 2012-13
	DCoPCT Accounts 2012-13_cover
	Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Accounts

	Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust
	2012-13 Accounts


	independent auditor's report to the signing officer of derbyshire county pct
	statement of the responsibilities of the signing officer of the primary care trust - derbyshire county pct
	statement of responsibilities in respect of the accounts - derbyshire county pct
	GOV dERcO
	DCoPCT Accounts 2012-13



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




